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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES

! :
RS SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION o
o L SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhills, %
S City of Mandaluyong, Metro Manila o
= ¥
= :
2l COMPANY REG. NO. CS200319138 %
i =
20 CERTIFICATE OF FILING :
o OF :
Q ' AMENDED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION -,

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

iy

ey

This is to certify that the amended articles of incorporatiod of the

ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
(Amending Article VII thereof)

DA b e aee T

copy annexed, adopted on June 14, 2011 and August 01, 2011 by a majority vote of
the Board of Director and by the vote of the stockholders owning or representing
more than two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock and certified under oath by the
Secretary and a majority of the Board of Directors of the corporation was approved by
the Commission on this date pursuant to the provision of Section 16 of the Corporation
Code of the Philippines, Batas Pambansa Blg. 68, approved on May 1, 1980 and copies
thereof are filed with the Commission. -
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Unless this corporation obtains or already has obtained the appropriate
Secondary License from this Commission, this Certificate does not authorize it to
undertake business activities requiring a Secondary License from this Commission such
as, but not limited to acting as: broker or dealer in securities, government securities
eligible dealer (GSED), investment adviser of an investment company, close-end or
open-end investment company, investment house, transfer agent, commodity/financial
futures exchange/broker/merchant, financing company, pre-need plan issuer, general
agent in pre-need plans and time shares/club shares/ membership certificates issuers or
selling agents thereof. Neither does Certificate constitute as permit to undertake
activities for which other government agencies require a license or permit.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have set my hand and caused the seal of this

Commission to be giﬁf% to this Certificate at Mandaluyong City, Metro Manila,
Philippines, this day of November, Twenty Eleven.

DA
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e

BENITO A. CATARAN
Director
Company Registration and Monitoring Department

I3 et der et e O e et v h y yary,
OO0 ON OGN A S AR AR A AANGO0OO0GON0AOO0ONAOS OO ANNAOAAADANANAGANAAN

Ay

MVighlo

: 0 DOD e,
\'A'g‘t’t'.‘n'«%t‘;' R J.JlJ'l'l'l‘l'l'l‘)‘)'i'l'o.l't".l'i't’Jfﬁ?i!0'i‘l"'l'p‘}')'l.i'l'i‘)'t!i'l.'.l-'b'l EARAAAAAAN ""l‘ttt'}!t!‘!!!t'l?l?l'l'[".(."t'l'l'{.t't?\'tlj't'l'('l'('l'l'.' AWMU A OAOOOODOOVDDOOCO00000000000000

ll‘!llliillilI!lllllll.lllllllltlilllll!lll'l‘i'l'i‘na'

Jl)l"'lli'l RN R R R XYY
IR R R RO XX
0000000000000

4

iIll!l!l!!l'l”lllll!'.l'!..'!lllll!llll?'l'llitllll.”!'!'l!l’i'l”|lll!!ll!liill'!!lllllil!!c-!l6llllllllltll0|llil'!ilillll!lllllllillfil
L)

0000000000000 0000000000000 000 D000 000000000000 000000000000 00 000000000
LA a0 b b e AL LRSS, sEREL A e o A N ey
A Ao A B A0SO A D B OO 0B O A A A D OB OB Bl B BN 0A B SR B BB B GO0 B8A8A0000

o ]



i v Yy A m e e  ————

[EPSATSrIGEIE URVEL LT - LIPS e e S

i;,‘;,_,“:ia':ua aFma

. Title: SEC i-Report ) ;‘ .
I . \ -:f .
Republic of the Philippines :
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
SECURITIES & EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhitls
City of Mandaluyong, 1554 &

-03
> |
=<
-
m
Z
p
>
w
7]
m
w
7
=
m
Z
—
“
O
X
-
=
O
>
N
8
3
N
[ ]
F -9
>

gpATE RESPONSIBILITY CENTER "’si -
o 11/02/2011 (DEPARTMENT)  CRMD 4
L
SAYOR. ALLIANGE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. "
PASIG CITY il
NATURE OF COLLECTION ACCOUNT CODE AMOUNT
[RF (A0B23) 131 17,010.00
TNCREAGE/DECREASE CAPITAL STOCK 606 1,100,000.00
AMENDED ARTICLES 606 ~ 500,00
-
.
r‘ i
¥
Php 1,111,510.00
TOTAL AMOUNTTOBF PAID P 1,111,510
. 3 _.,.l‘ .
Assessed by: J 3
MMVELASQUEZ f DR G34AE3 Ny 252011 084 8PN SEC Mo, rul

MaChineValidaﬁon CA 7/0///[002 i‘;?lz" r'nf,: -&il T
W 2onpez -

T Lt [
IR L
i aer AT e s fear s 0
L

o L S TR
4 . . ) A
b e o4 - TR Mok
3
43 -
% R F:!‘.
b : 's
e 19 N
\2'} Ry = §TUSRN B ;‘):f'
b o
I PR T e s o i
-_-:i
i l‘- .
.t
""j'
3
4
P’

e
http://150.150.150.130: 8686/sec1report/epayment/downloadforms sx 11/2/2011



&

i
¢k
0y
)
L

<
<
@
o4
<
<
G
N

AMENDED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF

ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
formerly Alliance Tuna International, Inc.

Know All Men By These Presents:

The undersigned incorporators, all of legal age and majority of whom are
residents of the Philippines, have this day voluntarily agreed to form a stock
corporation under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines.

THAT WE HEREBY CERTIFY:

FIRST: That the name of this corporation shall be:

ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
(As amended by the Board of Directors in their meeting held
on May 26, 2010 and approved by the stockholders in
their meeting heid on July 1, 2010)

SECOND: A. That the primary purpose of this corporation is to engage in
the business of manufacturing, canning, preserving, preparing, processing,
packing, repacking, trading on a wholesale basis, marketing, distributing,
importing, exporting, shipping and selling foed products such as marine,
aquaculture, agriculture, and meat products, their by-products, other products
with food base or their derivatives or those analogous or similar food products of
every class and description, fresh, processed, preserved or otherwise, and all
food and other preparations; to own, acquire, pledge, buy, sell, convey, assign
and transfer, food products such as marine, aquaculture, agriculture, and meat
products, their by-products, other products with food base or their

derivatives or those analogous or similar food products of every class and

p.1
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the corporation.

description, fresh, processed, preserved or otherwise, goods and merchandise of

every kind or description which may be incidental in carrying out the business of

and IN FURTHERANCE of the foregoing purposes:

1. To purchase, acquire, own, lease, sell and convey real

properties such as lands, buildings, factories and
warehouses and machineries, equipment and other personal
properties as may be necessary or incidental to the conduct
of the corporate business, and to pay in cash, shares of its
capital stock, debentures and other evidences of
indebtedness, or other securities, as may be deemed
expedient, for any business or property acquired by the
Corporation and in accordance with Philippine laws.

. To borrow or raise money necessary to meet the financial

requirements of its business by issuances of bonds,
promissory notes and other evidences of indebtedness, and
to secure the repayment thereof by mortgage, pledge, deed
of trust, or lien upon the properties of the Corporation or to
issue pursuant to law, shares of its capital stock, debentures
and other evidences of indebtedness in payment for
properties acquired by the Corporation or for money
borrowed in the prosecution of its lawful activities;

. To invest and deal with the money and properties of the

Corporation in such manner as may from time to time be
considered wise or expedient for the advancement of its
interests and to sell, dispose of or transfer the business,
properties and goodwill of the Corporation or any part thereof
for such consideration and under such terms as it shall see
fit to accept;

. To aid in any manner any corporation, association, domestic

or foreign, or any firm or individual, any shares of stock in
which or any bonds, debentures, notes, and securities,
evidences of indebtedness, contracts or obligations of which
are held by or for the Corporation;

. To enter into any lawful arrangement for sharing profits,

reciprocal concession, or cooperation, with any corporation,
association, partnership, syndicate, entity, person or
governmental, municipal or public authority, domestic or
foreign, in the carrying on of any business or transaction
deemed necessary, convenient or incidental to carrying out
any of the purposes of the Corporation;

p. 2
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6. To acquire or obtain from any government or authority,

national, provincial, municipal or otherwise, or any
corporation, company or partnership or person, such charter,
contracts, franchise, privileges, exemption, licenses and
concessions as may be conducive to the business of the
Corporation;

. To establish and operate one or more branch offices or

agencies and to carry on any or all of its operations and.
business without any restrictions as to place or amount
including the right to hold, purchase or otherwise acquire,
lease, mortgage, pledge and convey or otherwise deal in and
with real and personal property anywhere within and/or
outside the Philippines;

. To conduct and transact any and all lawful activities, and to

do or cause to be done any one or more of the acts and
things herein set forth as its purposes, within or without
Philippines, and in any and all foreign countries, and to do
everything necessary, desirable or incidental to the
accomplishment of the purposes or the exercise of any one
of the powers herein enumerated, or which shall at any time
appear conducive to or expedient for the protection or benefit
of the Corporation; and

. To make and alter all kinds of investments and make

mortgage loans or with any kind of guarantee to make
monetary investments; in whatever may be necessary or
incidental to the business of the Corporation, guarantee in
behalf of the Corporation, solely or jointly, any debt,
obligation or loan of any of its subsidiary companies or any
other company where it has an interest, or mortgage, pledge
or encumber the properties and assets of the Corporation for
stated purposes. (As amended by the Board of Directors in
their meeting held on May 26, 2010 and approved by the
stockholders in their meeting held on July 1, 2010)

B. That the corporation shall have ali the express powers of a corporation
as provided for under Section 36 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines.

p.3
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THIRD: That the place where the principal office of the corporation is to
be established is at:

Suite 1205, East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre,
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila.

FOURTH: That he term for which the corporation is to exist is fifty (50)
years from and after the date of issuance of the certificate of incorporation.

FIFTH: That the names, nationalities, and residences of the incorporators

are as follows:

Name Nationality Residence
(Complete Address)
Alvin Y. Dee Filipino 1205 East Tower PSEC, Ortigas Center, Pasig City
Jonathan Y. Dee Filipino 1205 East Tower PSEC, Ortigas Center, Pasig City
Joanna Dee-Laurel Filipino 1205 East Tower PSEC, Ortigas Center, Pasig City
Teresita S. Ladanga Filipino 1205 East Tower PSEC, Ortigas Center, Pasig City
Arak Ratboriharn Thai 3300/12 Elephant Tower, Tower A 14/F, Phaholyothin

Road, Chatujak, Bangkok, Thailand

SIXTH: That the number of directors of the corporation shall be seven (7),
two (2) of whom shall be independent; (As amended on June 6, 2006)

SEVENTH: That the authorized capital stock of the cgéoration is ONE

BILLION FIVE HUNDRED MILLION PESOS (Php1,500,000.000.00) in_ lawful
money of the Philippines, divic_ied/if@ One Billion Fj\e/ Hundred Million
(1,500,000,000) shares, with the pa%alue of One Peso ( Pﬁm .00) per share. (As
amended on January 19, 2004, December 14,2005 and. further amended on
June 6, 2006, August 8, 2007 & August 1, 2011)

No_stockholders of any class shall be entitled to any pre-emptive right to

purchase, subscribe for, or receive any part of the shares of the Corporation,

whether issued from its unissued capital or its treasury stock. (As amended on
June 6, 2008.)
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EIGHT: That the subscribers to the capital stock and the amount paid-in

to their subscriptions are as follows:

No. of Amount Amount
Name Nationality shares Subscribed Paid
Subscribed

Alvin Y. Dee Filipino 20,000 P 20,000.00 P 20,000.00
Jonathan Y. Dee Filipino 20,000 20,000.00 20,000.00
Joanna Dee-Laurel Filipino 19,999 19,999.00 19,999.00
Teresita S. Ladanga Filipino 1 1.00 1.00
Arak Ratborinam Thai 340,000 340,000.00 40,000.00
Total 400,000 P 400,000.00 P 100,000.00

NINTH: That JOANNA DEE-LAUREL has been elected by the
subscribers as Treasurer of the corporation to act as such untit her successor is
duly elected and qualified in accordance with the by-laws; and that as such
Treasurer, she has been authorized to receive for and in the name and for the

benefit of the corporation, all subscriptions paid by the subscribers.

TENTH: That the corporation manifests its willingness to change its
corporate name in the event another person, firm or entity has acquired a prior
right to use the said firm name or one deceptively or confusingly similar to it.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have set our hands this 25" day of August
2003 at Pasig City, Metro Manila.

(Sgd.) (sgd.)
ALVIN Y. DEE JONATHAN Y. DEE
(Sgd.) (sgd.)
JOANNA DEE-LAUREL TERESITA S. LADANGA
(Sgd.)

ARAK RATBORIHARN
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WITNESSES:

(Sgd.) (Sgd.)

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Republic of the Philippines }S.c.
Pasig City }

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public in and for Pasig City, Philippines, this 25"
day of August, 2003 personally appeared.:

Name Comm. Tax Cert. Date & Place Issued
No.
Alvin Y. Dee 02191479 01.06.03/Mandaluyong City
Jonathan Y. Dee 02191480 01.06.03/Mandaluyong City
Joanna Dee-l_aurel 02191481 (01.06.03/Mandaluyong City
Teresita S. Ladanga 23421483 03.26.03/Marikina City

Arak Ratboriharn Passport # E545253 12.02.02/Bangkok, Thailand

all known to me and toc me known to be the same persons who executed the
foregoing Article of Incorporation and they acknowledged to me that the same is
their free and voluntary act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my
notarial seal on the date and at the place first above written.

(Sgd.)

MARIA ROSARIO Z. DEL ROSARIO
Notary Public Until December 31, 2004
PTR No. 1589324; Pasig City; 4-09-03
IBP No. 584900; Rizal Chapter; 3-12-03

Doc. No. 135 ;
Page No. 28 ;
Book No. | ;
Series of 2003.

p. 6
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DIRECTORS’ CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT. , é/ ,ﬁ "
OF ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION QR3¥SRIVEE -
ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, | -

We, the undersigned members of the Board of Directors and Corporate
Secretary, hereby certify that the Articles of Incorporation of Alliance Select
Foods International, Inc. (the Corporation), a corporation duly organized and
existing under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines, with business address
at Suite 1205, East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road,
Ortigas Center, Pasig City, was amended increasing the authorized capital
stock to Php1,500,000,000.00 by an affirmative vote of the stockholders owning

- - / -
or representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock at a
meeting held for that purpose at the Oakwood Premier Hotel, Nostalg 1, 17 ADB
Avenue, Ortigas Center, Pasig City on August 1, 2011 and approved by the

y
unanimous vote of the meyrs of the Board of Directors on June 14, 2011.

7
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands this

2 6§ SEP, 201:  at Pasig City, Metro Manila, Philippines.

GEOR(ﬁ/svcu: \ EA%N Y.DEE ¢

Chairman Vice-Chairman
Independent Director TIN 102-920-664
TIN 910-761-865

ATHAN Y. DEE HEDY S.C. YAP-CHUA
Director Director
President & CEO Singaporean Passport
TIN 105-698-807 No. E0021987F
EDGAR B/SOLILAPSI (
Director
TIN 118-455-840 A 1
Countersigned:
GEORGE k. SYCIP
Chairman of Stockhoiders’ Meeting
Emﬁ—o& CALARN(
S ecretary of Stockholders' eetlng
TIN 101-840-335
Y & SEP, 200}
SUSBCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this | at SYEZELIQITD

The affiants exhibiting to me their respective Tax ldentification/Passports as
indicated above.

£ hal.g,ﬁ, .
Doc. No. 3lep : Ff fﬂ

AFTY. TOMAS F. DULAY, JR,

Page No. 7 NOTARY PUBLIC
Book No. L - UntilDecember 31, 2012
Series of 2011, Roll Now 16383 7 Macch 13, 1901

I80* No. 801359/ 01-03-11-Q.C.
["PR Nu, 4559225 / 01-03-11-Q.C
MCLE EXEMPTED
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REPUBLIC CF THE PHILIPPINES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhills,
City of Mandaluyong, Metro Manila

COMPANY REGISTRATION AND MONITORING DEPARTMENT

Financlal Analysis & Audit Division y!
1. Name of Corporation : ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL,INC.
2. Application . Increase in authorized capital stock s
3. Form of Payment : Stock Dividend
4. Date of Stockholder's Meeting TAugust 1,2011 -
5. Capital Structure :
Present I Increase As Increased
Authorized par P1.00 950,000,000 |~ 550,000,000 1,500,000,000
Subscribed & Paid 871,257,487 137,500,000 1,008,757.487
— E

6. Verification
a) List of Subscriber/s:
The amount of P137,500,000, stock dividend will be subscribed and fully paid

and distributed pro-rata to stockholders of record as of the 15" trading day after the
Commission's approval thereof. /

b) Summary of the audited balance sheet as of December 31, 20-1OTS presented as follows:

ASSETS US Dollars Philippine Peso
Totals Assets 34,946,860 1,533,642,951 |,
LIABILITIES & EQUITY -
Total Liabilities 13,226,023 580,424,018
Share Capital 11,540,140 599,277,059~ -~
Sharg Premium 2,198,790 102,448,952
Retained Earnings 7,987,681 383,216,271
Cumulative transaction adjustments - (131,435,812)
Treasury shares { 5,774} { 287,537)
Total Equity 21,720,837 953,218,933
Total Liabilities & Equity 34,946,860 1,533,642,951
c) Documents submitted: / /

1) CFD Routing Clearance signed by Justina F. Callangan, Acting Director.
2) Secretary's Certificate showing the List of Stockholder's of Record as of August 1, 2011
and treatment of fractional shares.
3) Long-form audit report with analysis of retained earnings for the last five (5} years and
“  audited financial statements as of December 31, 2010 {in functional currency — US
Dollars) certified by Bonifacio F. Lumacang Jr., SEC accredited CPA with stamped
. received by BIR & SEC.
-4} Audited financial statements as of December 31, 2010 {in Phil. Peso) certified by the
same, Mr. Lumacang Jr.
%Reconca‘liation of Retained Earnings available for dividend declaration.

7. Remarks:
Audited financial statements as of December 31, 20.10/s.howed a relained earnings
balance of P383,216,271 which is more than sufficient to cover the P137,500,000 stock

dividend under consideration. -

Reconciliation of retained earnings showed the amount of P382,928,734 available
for dividend declaration. <

The shares of stocks are registered and are listed at the Philippine Stock Exchange.

q




8. Recommending approval:

Based on the foregoing, the aforesaid application for increase in capitalization of
subject corporation may be given due course insofar as the subscription and full payment of
P137.500,90 by way of stock dividend are concerned.

'O Al deccei —
%‘L ufz3
Submitted by: Ahgeli Gf Villanueva Reviewed & Approved by: YOIW;J es
Securities Firtancial Specialist [li AsshDirdctor-FAAD

11.15.2011
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
Department of Finance

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Metro Manlla

ROUTING CLEARANCE

COMPANY NAME:

ALLLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

SEC REGISTRATION NO:

CS200319138

PURPOSE:

SEC CLEARANCE CERTIFICATE

DATE RECEIVED:

October 3, 2011

DEPARTMENT:

CORPORATION FINANCE DEPARTMENT

DATE RECEIVED

October 3, 2011

DATE RELEASED:

QOctober, 2011

PROCESSED BY:

MA. THERESA S. POSADAS

REMARKS:

/

Per records of CFD, as of this date, the company has no pending assessment or
findings of any violation under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing

Rules and Regulations.

In view thereof, we interpose no objection to the company’s application for increase in

capital stock.

JUSTINA ]"F ALLANGAN
Acting Director




*Manabat Delgado Amper & Co.

Manabat Delgado Amper & Co.

; 5% Floor Salamin Building
bk 197 Salcedo Street Legaspi Village
4l . Makati City 1229
. Philippines
&
& Tel: +63 2 812 0535
& Fax: +63 2 810 5047
o www.deloitte.com/ph
v BOA/PRC Reg. No, 0004
é: SEC Accreditation No, 0001-FR-2
fuih
&

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Securities and Exchange Commission
EDSA Mandaluyong City

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Alliance Select Foods International, Inc.,
(the Company) which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2010, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended based on the Company’s functional currency which is the US Dollar.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financal statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, Those standards require

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are approprate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Deloi
e o I tte o] Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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In our opinion, the financial statements presented in US Dollar functional currency, present fairly, in
all material respects, the financal position of Alliance Select Foods International, Inc. as of
December 31, 2010, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of a matter

The financial statements for which we have issued our unqualified opinion on April 8, 2011 have
been presented in its functional currency, which is in the US Dollar. These financial statements have
been translated to Philippine Peso for comparative purposes and to comply with the requirements of
the Securities and Exchange Commission in relation to the Company's application for the increase
in authorized capital stock. These financial statements are not intended to amend any previous
fiings with or supersede any previously-submitted financial statements to any government or
non-government agencies.

Manabat Delgado Amper & Co.

TIN 005299331

BOA Registration No. 0004, valid from January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2012

SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-2, issued on January 28, 2010; effective until January 27, 2013

By:

Ot

Bonifacio F. Lumacang, Jr.

Parmer

CPA License No. 0098090

SEC A.N. 0526-A, issued on May 13, 2010, effective until May 12, 2013

TIN 170035681

BIR A.N. 08-002552-18-2009, issued on Apnl 7, 2009; effective until April 6, 2012
PTR No. 2641942, issued on January 3, 2011, Makad City

Makati City, Philippines
October 25, 2011
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
(Formerly Alliance Tuna Intemnational, Inc.)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(In United States Dollar and Philippine Peso Presentation Currency)

December 31, 2010
USD PHP
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 327,525 P 14,373,435
Trade and other receivables - net 8,157,754 358,003,034
Due from related parties 4,024,997 176,636,993
Inventories - net 3,814,026 167,378,531
Prepayments and other current assets 9,442,932 414,403,071
Total Current Assets 25,767,234 1,130,795,064
Non-current Asgets \
Investment in an associate - at cost 240,964 10,574,705
Investments in subsidianies - at cost 5,236,839 229,818,680
Property, plant and equipment - net 1,328,007 58,279,587
Othet non-current assets 2,373,816 104,174,915
Total Non-current Assets 9,179,626 402,847,887
$34,946,860 P1,533,642,951
o
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables $ 1,718,539 P 75,418,084
Loans payable 10,754,848 471,976,504
Income tax payable 683 29,973
Total Current Liabilittes 12,474,070 547,424,561
Non-current Liabilities
Loans payable - net of current portion 31,259 1,371,801
Retirement benefit obligation 233,678 10,254,959
Dhae to a related party 487,016 21,372,697
Total Non-current Liabilities 751,953 32,999,457
13,226,023 580,424,018 -
!
Equity
Share capital 11,540,140 599,277,059 .-
Share premium 2,198,790 102,448,952
Retained eamings 7,987,681 383,216,211
Cumulative translation adjustments - (131,435,812) ~
21,726,611 953,506,470 -
Treasury shares (5,774) (287,537)
21,720,837 953,218,933
$34,946,860 P1,533,642,951
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b (Formerly Alliance Tuna International, Inc.)

i STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

P {In United States Dollar and Philippine Peso Presentation Currency)
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b For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

ol

. USD PHP

:':,*EE Revenues $38,173,444  P1,721,991,652

Bl Cost of Goods Manufactured and Sold 33,673,895 1,519,018,459

i
Gross Profit 4,499,549 202,973,193
Other Operating Income 70,955 3,200,757

4,570,504 206,173,950
Selling and Administrative Expenses 2,195,237 99,026,428
Other Operating Expenses 117,455 5,298,356
2,312,692 104,324,784

Profit from Operations 2,257,812 101,849,166
Finance Costs 536,346 24,194,394
Profit Before Tax 1,721,466 77,654,772
Income Tax Expense 683 30,810
Profit for the Year $ 1,720,783 P 77,623,962

Earnings Per Share
Bastc earmnE per share $0.003 P0.13
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC,

(Formerly Alliance Tuna Intemational, Inc.)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

{(In United States Dollar and Philippine Peso Presentation Currency)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

UsD PHP

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit before tax $ 1721466 P 77,654,772
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 288,870 13,030,839

Retirement benefit expense 60,068 2,709,649

Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net 12,057 (13,833,106)

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (2,276) (205,340)

Cummulative translation adjustment - (51,527,532)
Interest income (5,465) (246,525)
Finance costs 536,346 24,194,407
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 2,611,066 51,777,164
Decrease (Increase) in:

Due from related parties 739,556 44,228,626

Trade and other receivables (3,473,009) (140,836,995)

Inventories {293,390) (4,175,929)

Prepayments and other curreat assets (1,333,125) (38,464,858)
Increase in trade and other payables 396,719 13,913,352
Cash generated used in operating activities (1,352,183) (73,558,640)
Contribution to retirement fund (22,787) (1,027,915)
Net cash used in operating activities (1,374,970) (74,586,555)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Additons 10 property, plant and equipment (242,888) (10,659,140)
Additonal investments in subsidiaries (3,785,761) (162,552,508)
Collection from related parties 61,352 2,767,570
Additions to other non-current assets 31,220 7,312,934
Interest income received 5,465 246,525
Net cash used in investing activities (3,930,612) (162,884,619)
Cash Flows from Financing Activitics
Payment to a related party (1,296,418) (61,300,169)
Proceeds from bank loans 37,669,790 1,699,272,926
Payments of loans (30,467,400) (1,374,375,274)
Dividends paid (258,430) (11,657,700)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2,276 102,670
Finance costs paid (462,819) (20,877,626)
Net cash from financing activities 5,186,999 231,164,827
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (118,583) (6,306,347)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 446,108 20,679,782
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End $_ 327,525 P 14,373,435
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RETAINED EARNINGS

An analysis of the Company’s retained earnings for five (5) years is as follows:

USD PHP
Balance, December 31, 2005 $1,908,881 P106,062,582
Profit for the year 2006 1,986,311 101,926,159
Stock dividends (1,936,737) {101,099,610)
Balance, December 31, 2006 1,958,455 106,889,131
Profit for the year 2007 2,117,469 97,717,806
Stock dividends (3,000,070) {136,056,192)
Balance, December 31, 2007 1,075,854 68,550,745
Profit for the year 2008 3,356,351 149,272,368
Cash dividends (252,286) (11,979,790)
Balance, December 31, 2008 4,179,919 205,843,323
Profit for the year 2009 2,345,409 111,728,776
Cash dividends (258,430) (11,979,790
Balance, December 31, 2009 6,266,898 305,592,309
Profit for the year 2010 1,720,783 77,623,962
Balance, December 31, 2010 $7,987,681 P383,216,271
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ANNEX "A"

Unappropriated Retained Eamings, ar adisted
bl for dividend dictibation, begianing

Add: Net income acrually eamed/realized during the period

Net income dusing the period dlosed to Retaincd Eamings L72078%

Less: Non-actusl /unrealized income net of tax
Equity in net income of associate /joint venture -
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net {(except those anributable to .
Cash and Cash Equivalents)
Othet lized gamns or adj to the retained camings
25 & tesult o oertam tramsactions sccounted for wnder the PFRS -

Sub-total -

Net i nctuslly d during the period

Add{Less):
Treasury shares (5,774

TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND

Certified by:

Manabat Delgado Amper & GCo.
BOA Registration No. 0004, vabid from January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2012

SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-2, issued on Jamuary 28, 2010 effective untl [aruary 27, 2013
TIN 005299331

Bonifacio F. Lumacang, |r.

Partner

CPA License No. 0098090

SEC A.N. 0526-A, issued on May 13, 2010; effective untll May 12, 2013

TIN 170035681

BIR AN, 08-002552-18-2000, txsucd on Apnl 7, 2009; cffective untl Aprd 6, 2012
PTR No. 2641942, issucd on fanuary 3, 2011, Makau City

Makati Ciry, Philippines
Oxtober 25, 201t

(287,537)

PHP
$6,266,898 P305,592,309
1,720,783 77,623,962
(5,774) (287,537)
£7,981,907 Pi oIy <
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Y Manabat Delgado Amper & Co.
b 5* Floor Salamin Building
B 197 Salcedo Street Legaspi Village
. Makati City 1229
'-Gﬂ Philippines
Gl Tel: +63 2 812 0535
i Fax: +63 2 810 5047
i www.deloitte.com/ph
o _ BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0004
& SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-2
bl
b Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC Building, EDSA
Mandaluyong City
Gentlemen:
In connection with our audit of the statement of fnancial positon of Alliance Select Foods
International, Inc. (Formerly Alliance Tuna International, Inc) as of December 31, 2010, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, we wish to state that the Company is listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange.
-~ Manabat Delgado Amper & Co.
BOA Registraton No. 0004, valid from January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2012
SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-2, issued on January 28, 2010; effective unl January 27, 2013
TIN 005299331
By:
onifacio F. Lumacang, Jr.
Partner
CPA License No. 0098090
SEC A.N. 0526-A, issued on May 13, 2010; effective until May 12, 2013
TIN 170035681
BIR A.N. 08-002552-18-2009, issued on April 7, 2009; effective until April 6, 2012
PTR No. 2641942, issued on January 3, 2011, Makat City
Makat City, Philippines
April 8, 2011
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Manabat Delgado Amper & Co.
St Floor Salamin Building

197 Salcedo Street Legaspi Village
Makati City 1229

Philippines

Tel: +63 2 812 0535
Fax; +63 2 810 5047
www.deloitte.com/ph

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0004
SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-2
CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
(Formerly Alliance Tuna Interational, Inc.)

Suite 1205, 1206 & 1405 East Tower

Philippine Stock Exchange Center, Exchange Road

Ortgas Center, Pasig City

Pursuant to your request, this certification is being issued to certify that the Company is yet to file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the application for increase in share capital.

We have audited the financial statements of Alliance Select Foods Intemational, Inc. as of and for the
twelve-month period ended December 31, 2010 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards.

This certification is issued solely in connection with the application for the increase in authorized
share capital of Alliance Select Foods Intermational, Inc. with the SEC and should not be used,
referred to or distributed for any other purposes.

Manabat Delgado Amper & Co.

BOA Registration No. 0004, valid from january 1, 2010 to December 31, 2012

SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-2, issued on January 28, 2010; effective untl January 27, 2013
TIN 005299331

By:

onifacio F. Lumacang, Jr.
Partner
CPA License No. 0098090
SEC A.N. 0526-A, issued on May 13, 2010; effective untl May 12, 2013
TIN 170035681
BIR A.N. 08-002552-18-2009, issued on April 7, 2009; effective until April 6, 2012
PTR No. 2641942, issued on January 3, 2011, Makan City

Makati City, Philippines
April 8, 2011
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Manabat Delgado Amper & Co.
5" Floor Salamin Building

197 Salcedo Street Legaspi Village
Makati City 1229

Philippines

Tel: +63 2812 0535
Fax: +63 2 810 5047
www.deloitte.com/ph

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0004
SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-2

Securities and Exchange Commission
Edsa, Mandaluyong City

Gentlemen:

We consent to the use of our report dated April 8, 2011 on the financial statements of Alliance Select
Foods International, Inc. as of December 31, 2010, in connection with the Company’s application for
increase in share capital.

Thank you.

Very truly yours,

Manabat Delgado Amper & Co.

BOA Registration No. 0004, valid from January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2012

SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-2, issued on January 28, 2010; effective until January 27, 2013
TIN 005299331

CPA License No. 0098090

SEC A.N. 0526-A, issued on May 13, 2010; effective until May 12, 2013

TIN 170035681

BIR AN. 08-002552-18-2009, issued on April 7, 2009; effective untl April 6, 2032
PTR No. 2641942, issued on January 3, 2011, Makati City

Makati City, Philippines
Apnl 8, 2011

" Deloitt
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
(Formerly Alliance Tuna International, Inc.)

Suite 1205, 1206 & 1405 East Tower

Philippine Stock Exchange Center, Exchange Road

Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Report on the Financial Statements

. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Alliance Select Foods International, Inc.,
which compnise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, and
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
informaton.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of finandial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Aunditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatemnent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

" Deloi
e o Itte o] Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the finandial position

of Alliance Select Foods International, Inc. as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, and its financial

performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards.

Other Matters
We submit the following as part of this report:
. Statements of financial position of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008;

. Statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008; and

. Comments on the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income

as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010.

The following are supplemental information on the financial statements as of and for the period
ended December 31, 2010 and comments on the principal auditing procedures performed on the
accounts presented in the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income.
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ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $327,525
Cash on hand and in banks $327,525

Cash on hand represents petty cash. Cash in banks represent current and savings deposits in -

Philippine Peso and US Dollar currencies in various banks. e

We sent confirmation requests to the depository banks. We also obtained bank recondiliation
statements, agreed recorded cash balances against bank balances and verified reconciling items
against supporting documents and no exceptions were noted. These cash in banks are unrestricted
and immediately available for use in the current operations. For those banks with no confirming
replies, we have performed alternative procedures by comparing the balances per books to the bank
statements. Differences noted were accounted through the review of bank reconciliations and were
noted only to be due to exchange rate differences which were deemed immaterial. No further
exceptions were noted.

Cash in banks earned average interest of 2% during 2010.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES $8,157,754
Trade $6,089,746
Other receivables 2,068,008

$8,157,754

Aging of trade receivables follows:

Current $£3,740,035
1 to 30 days past due 2,095,820
31 to 60 days past due 253,885

$6,089,746

Trade receivables represent outstanding receivables from foreign customers for the export of canned
tuna and sales of fishmeal to local buyers. We sent confirmation requests to selected customers and
agreed confirmed balances to the amounts listed in the trade receivables aging reports. For those
customers with no confirmation replies received, alternative procedures were performed.
Subsequent collections and proof of receivables for the selected customers were conducted and no
exceptions were noted. We reviewed the trade receivables aging analysns and_ascertained its
co]lectablhty by comparing the Company’s subsequent collections_against its outstandmg trade
receivables as of December 31, 2010. We also reviewed the Company’s credit term with an average

credlt penod of 50 days and the provision policy for compliance and adequacy. No exceptions noted.

Other receivables which consist mainly of claims recervable, advances to employees and SSS refund
were verified through examination of invoices and other pertinent documents.

Based on the results of the foregoing audit procedures performed, we have ascertained that the
outstanding balances are collectible and reasonably stated. \/ '

A

("
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INVENTORIES - net $3,814,026
Finished goods - canned tuna $1,989,889
Raw materials “T 11,640,398
Parts and supplies 191,417

3,821,704
Less: Allowance for inventory obsolescence ™ 7,678
$3,814,026

For purposes of determining the propriety of inventory amounts, we reviewed the inventory list and
stock valuation report as of December 31, 2010 and tested the summarization and reconciliation of _
the total to the general ledger. An inventory count was also performed at year-end. We also
obtained the recondiliation statetnents for finished goods, raw materials and other materials~and
compared balances per books and per physical count as shown in the schedule of inventories. No
exceptions noted.

We reviewed the overall controls over inventory and noted no significant weakness. The Company
uses weighted average method in costing its inventories. Procedures were performed to validate the
quantty and costs of the Company’s inventones. Specific identification was performed based on
inventory count done to validate the allowance for inventory obsolescence. No exceptions were
noted.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS $9,442,932
Deposits - fish supplier and others $8,723,021
Prepatd insurance 442,494
Prepaid importation 7,652
Other prepayments 269,765

$9,442,932

Deposits relate to the Company’s exclusive agreements with fish suppliers. As provided for in the
agreement, the Company is required to make a 50% advance payment, based on agreed price and
quantity per contract with the supplier. This shall be subsequently liquidated against the total cost of
fish delivered to the plant.

The advance payment extended to the fish supplier is secured by a chattel mortgage over their

" vessels.

We obtained schedules and reconciled the balances with the general ledger. Supporting check
vouchers, delivery documents and official receipts were also verified to test the validity of the amount
recorded. No exceptions were noted.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE - at cost $240,964

Acquisition Cost $240,964

This represents 40% investment in FDCP, Inc., a can-making company located in General Santos
City and is the Company’s major supplier of tin cans. We verified any additional investment in the
associate and traced it to the general ledger, no additional movement and no exceptions noted.



plb
o
o
Pl
A3

&
o

)
0
<
&
¥

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - at cost $5,236,839
PT International Alliance Foods Indonesia (PTTAFT) $4,499,000
Prime Foods NZ Ltd. (PFNZ) 604,380
Big Glory Bay Salmon and Seafood Co,, Inc. (BGB) 124,846
Alliance MHI Properties, Inc. (AMIHI) 8,613

$5,236,839

PTIAFI

PTIAFI was established under the Indonesian law within the framework of the Foreign Capital
Investment Law No. 25 year 2007 based on Notarial Deed No. 101 dated May 21, 2001. The Deed
of Establishment was approved by the Minister of Justice of the Republic of Indonesia in his
Decision Letter No. AHU-24298.AH.01.01 dated May 28, 2008. The Company’s percentage of
ownetship interest is 89.98% as of December 31, 2010.

PTIAFI is a tuna processing company established in Indonesia in a joint venture with an Indonesian
fishing company, PT Wailan Pratama.

PTIAFI is primarily engaged in canned fish processing exclusively for interational market. The plant
is located in JI. Raya Madidir Kelurahan Madidir Unet Ling, II Kecamatan Madidir, Bitung,
Indonesia.

PFNZ

PFNZ is a company domiciled in New Zealand and registered under the Companies Act of 1993 on
September 8, 1993. The Ministry of Economic Development assigned company number 625998 to
PFNZ as part of its registration process. The Company’s percentage of ownership interest is 50% +
1 share as of December 31, 2010.

PFNZ is primarily engaged in the business of processing, manufacturing and distrnbuting smoked
salmon and other seafood products under the Prime Smoke and Studholme brand for distribution in
New Zealand and other countries. The plant is located in Hororata RD2 Darfield.

BGB

BGB was registered with the Philippine SEC on October 29, 2009. BGB was established primarily to
engage in the business of manufacturing goods such as salmon and other processed seafoods and
was issued registration number CS200916903. Its registered address is Suite 1206 East Tower,
Philippine Stock Exchange Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. The Company’s
percentage of ownership interest is 55.8% as of December 31, 2010.

The construction of the salmon processing plant in General Santos City is stll on-going as of
December 31, 2010. BGB is on its pre-operating stage.

AMIHI

AMIHI was registered with the Philippine SEC on June 18, 2010. AMIHI was established primarily
to engage in the business as a property holding company and was issued registration number
CS201009131. Its registered address is Suite 1205 East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Center,
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City.

AMIHI is a Special Purpose Entity (SPE) and considered a subsidiary of the Company. The
percentage of ownership interest of the Company is 40% as of December 31, 2010.

AMIHI has not started its commercial operations as of December 31, 2010.

We verified the related documents for the investments made such as cash payments, contracts or
agreements and reconcile the details (including terms of agreement) with the recorded balances per
books.
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E.E Based on the results of the foregoing audit procedures performed, we ascertain that the investment
0 balances are properly valued.
Hi Management believes that there is no indication of impairment on its investments in subsidiaries.
&<
ﬁlﬁ RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - net $3,537,981
fm Balances with related parties are as follows:
<
< Due from Related Parties
by AMIHI $2,117,348
" BGB 804,037
PTIAFI 672,425
PFNZ 247,112
FDCP Inc. 155,239
First Dominion Prime Holdings, Inc. (FDPHI) 16,096
Alliance Pilipinas Holdings, Inc. 12,740 /
$4,024,997
Due to a Related Party
Maranaw Canning Corporation (MCC) $ 487,016 /

The Company and the affiliates above are considered to be related parties since these companies have
the same stockholders and owners.

The Company expects to collect or settle due from/to related parties within one (1) year.

Significant Contract Agreements

a. The Company extended cash advances to AMIHI which the latter used as a down payment to
purchase the General Santos plant from MCC amounting to $2,117,348.

b. The advances extended to BGB were used for its pre-operating expenses and to finance the
construction of the processing plant amounting to $804,037 as of December 31, 2010.

The Company executed a guarantee agreement in favor of Land Bank of the Philippines as part
of the security for the credit facilities obtained by BGB.

¢. The Company extended a non-interest bearing advances to its subsidiary PTIAFI to finance the
renovation of the plant, acquisition of machinery and equipment and for its initial working
capital.

Further, the Company issued a corporate guarantee and a subordination agreement with Rabo
Bank Jakarta for the working capital facility granted to PTIAFL

d. The Company extended advances to PFNZ for its working capital requirements of $247,327 in
2010.

e. The Company, in the ordinary course of business, purchased tin cans used as raw matenals from
FDCP Inc., at arm’s length basis, amounting to $4,417,140 in 2010.

f.  On October 18, 2004, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with FDPHI to
purchase the debt of FDPHI from certain creditors with miniscule amounts at net present value
of $17,491. In return, the Company would receive a total of $26,324 from FDPHI over a period
of 10 years, and in addition to this, a corresponding number of the Company shares which
would have accrued to the creditors were likewise issued to the Company as treasury shares. The
corresponding 287,537 ordinary shares were issued on November 8, 2006. These are part of the
shares declared by the SEC as exempted from registration under Sec. 10.2 of the SRC on
September 21, 2006.
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g. From 2004 up to the present, the Company has obtained advances from MCC with an annual
interest rate of 10% on the first P50 million and 8% on the excess.

Finance costs related to advances from related parties amounted to $158,347 in 2010.

h. The Company entered into a contract with MCC for the operating lease of the latter’s land, plant,
machinery and equipment in Barrio Tambler, General Santos City (Gensan Plant) at a monthly
rental of $21,443. The lease term started from March 1, 2004 and expired on December 23, 2010.
Upon expiration of the lease contract berween the Company and MCC, the latter leased the plant
for one-month or untl January 23, 2011 to AMIRI which in turn sub-leased the Gensan plant to
the Company. AMIHI is the subsidiary of the Company that would buy the Gensan plant from
MCC. The lease contract between MCC and AMIHI was extended to a much longer term
effective January 24, 2011 to December 23, 2013 thus, enabling AMIHI to sublease the plant to
the Company for the same period. As of December 31, 2010 the Company has an outstanding
lease deposit with MCC amounting to $2,316,549. The deposit is included in other non-current
assets in the statements of financial position.

The Company also leases from MCC an office condominium unit where its head office is located for
a period of two (2) years, renewable by mutual agreement of both parties. The lease is classified as
operating lease with a monthly rental of $3,262 in 2010.

We sent confirmation requests to affiliated companies and agreed confirmed balances to the amounts
recorded in the books. We verified intercompany transactions to the supporting documents such as
contract/agreement and invoices for validity and existence. No exceptions were noted.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - net

$1,328,007 —

Office
Fummiture, Piant
Leasehold Machinery and Transportation  Fixturesand  Furniture
Improvements Equipment Equipment Equipment  and Fixtures Total
Cost 7
January 1, 2010 $359,277 $1,248,061 $419.139 $147,211 $10427  $2,384,115
Additions 28,476 125,980 72,028 16,335 69 242,888
Transfers (59,114) (12,595) - - - (71,709)
Disposals . - (40,326) - - (40,326)
December 31, 2010 528,639 1,361,446 450,841 163,546 10496 2,514,968
Accumulated Depreciation
and Ameortization
January 1, 2010 330,494 256,739 257,444 97,787 6,310 948,774
Provisions 76915 88,131 101,860 20,321 1,643 288,870
Transfer - (10,357) - - - (10,357
Disposals - - (40,326) - {40,326)
December 31, 2010 407,409 334,513 318,978 118,108 7,953 1,186,961
Carrying Amount
December 31, 2010 $121,230 $1,026,933 $131,863 $ 45,438 $2543  §1,328,007

We obtained the Company’s lapsing schedules for property, plant and equipment and agreed detailed
amounts with the recorded balances of cost and accumulated depreciation accounts. and no

discrepancies were noted.
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g; On a test basis, from the lapsing schedule provided to us, we selected assets from the beginning cost
& column and current period purchases of the schedules and physically inspected the assets in order to
£ determine if the assets still exist and are in use by the Company. We traced the recorded costs of the
. selected assets to supporting documents (e.g vendor invoices for purchases in the current period,
<l capital expenditure approvals, our prior year working papers for assets purchased in prior years) and
::;E determined that current perdod additions were properly approved and did not include amounts which
po are expenses in nature. Furthermore, on a test basis, we examined disposals during the penod for
appropriate authorization, recomputed the related gain or loss and ascertained accuracy in the
f,gp recording of these transactions and noted no exceptions therein,
&

; We performed analytical procedures to determine the reasonableness of recorded depreciation and

B found it to be reasonably computed. Generally, deprediation is computed on the stra.tght hne method
based on the estimated useful life of the asset.

We reviewed the management’s assessment of the carrying amounts of the property, plant and
cqmpmcnt to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered ihipairment.
No exceptions were noted.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS $2,373,816 -
Lease deposit $2,316,549
Input value added tax (VAT) 45493
Deferred cost 11,774
$2,373,816
The lease deposit pertains to the amount paid to Maranaw Canning Corporation (MCC) for the
rental of the plant facility. We examined lease agreement and found the amount to be in accordance
with ‘the terms of the said contract. We validated the amount of deposit through examination’ of
supporting documents such as official receipt and no exceptions were noted. The remaining balance
is composed of input taxes which arise from the purchase of goods and services. We agreed the
amount against the summary of input taxes prepared by the client to the VAT returns. Deferred cost
was validated by examining supporting documents such as invoices, no exceptions were noted.
LIABILITIES /7
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES $1,718,539 /
Accounts payable - trade $1,041,153
Accrued expenses 646,090
Others 31,296

$1,718,539

Trade payables are obligations which arose from the purchase of fish from various suppliers and
cans from FDCP, Inc. We reviewed the aging schedule and noted that there were no long
outstanding payables. Confirmation letters were also sent to selected suppliers. Based on the
confirmation replies, there were no discrepancies identified. Alternative procedures were also
performcd for those accounts without reply, such as tests of subsequent payments and examinations
of 5 supplier’s invoices were performed to ensure existence of the liability. We also performed cut-off
procedures to satisfy ourselves as to the completeness of Labilities. No exceptions were noted.
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Details of accrued expenses are as follows:

Management fees $241,519
Interest 73,527
Due to government agencies 56,086
Salaries and wages 44,907
Freight 37,064
Rent 15,798
Other short-term employee benefits 12,253
Professional fees 16,131
Others 148,805

$646,090

We tested reasonableness of the accrued expense balances by determining its nature and basis of
accruall  For all accrued expenses that are based on accounting estimates, we performed
reasonableness tesung by performing independent recomputal:lon based on the reliable data and
compared the expectation to the balance per books. No exceptions were noted. On the other hand,
for some accruals which were based on supporting ewdence we examined the documents and no
exceptions were noted.

We performed search for unrecorded liabilities on a test basis by examining payments made by the
Company in 2011 for expenses incurred in 2010 in order to determine if these are expenses not
acerued in 2010. These payments were then compared to the amounts accrued. No unrecorded
liabilities as of December 31, 2010 were noted based on the procedures performed.

Based on the above procedures, we have satisfied ourselves as to the propriety and fair presentation
of the account balances.

LOANS PAYABLE : $10 786 107 \

b

Bank loans

The Company availed of bank facilities in the form of export packing credit, export bills purchase
against letters of credit/documents against payment sight and open account to finance its working
capital requirements at an interest rate of 4% to 7% per annum. The Company also has an
outstanding clean short-term loan with an investment bank.

Mortgage loans

These represent loans availed by the Company from certain local banks to finance the acquisition of
the Company’s transportation equipment. Interest rate is 10.65% per annum, payable on a monthly
basis and maturing in July 2013.

Proceeds received from bank and mortgage loans in 2010 amounted to $37,669,790. Payments of
bank and mortgage loans in 2010 amounted to $30,467,400. Finance costs arising from the above
loans amounted to $377,999 in 2010.

The unsecured outstanding bank and mortgage loans as of December 31, 2010 amounted to
$10,786,107 of which §10,754,848 is considered as current and $31,259 as non-current.

low Py
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ey RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION $233,678
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£ Present value of defined benefit obligations $292,358

) Unrecognized actuarial gains or losses (48,438)
g; Unamortized portion of the transitional liability (8,650)
& Transladon adjustments (1,592)
Lol Liability recopnized in the balance sheet $233,678
g: The Company has an unfunded, non-contributory retirement benefit plan covering qualified
0 employees. The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined
B benefit obligations were carried out on June 3, 2010 by an independent actuary.

Based on Management estimates, actuarial assumptions made on June 3, 2010 did not change
significantly over the year.

The present values of the defined benefit obligations, the related current service cost and past
service cost were measured using the projected unit credit method. We obtained the valuation report:
from the Company and reviewed accuracy of the balances recorded in the Company’s trial balance.

We tested the reasonableness of the assumptions used in the actuarial valuation by comparing it to
the market and validating the information submitted by the Company to the actuary. No exceptions
noted. To address conflict of interest and objectivity of the actuary from the Company, we obtained
independence declaration from the actuary. Also, we gathered information and checked relative
experience of the actuary through research to validate competency of the actuary. Adjustments were
proposed to achieve fair presentation of the account balance.

EQUITY

SHARE CAPITAL sn,sm,u{:/
SHARE PREMIUM 2,198,79
TREASURY SHARES (5,774)/

The Company’s share capital is 950,000,000 common shares with a par value of P1 each. Movement
of the Company’s share capital is as follows:

Shares Amount
Issued and fully paid
Balance, beginning 599,277,059 $11,540,140
Treasury shares (287,537) (5,774)
Balance, December 31, 2010 598,989,522 $11,534,366

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.
There was no movement in the share capital of the Company for the 2010 reporting period.

We sent confirmation request to the Company’s corporate secretary to validate the ownership of the
shares and no exception was noted.

10
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RETAINED EARNINGS $7,987,681

An analysis of the Company’s retained earnings for the past five (5) years is as follows:

Balance, December 31, 2005 $1,908,881
Profit for the year 2006 ‘ 1,986,311
Stock dividends {1,936,737)
Balance, December 31, 2006 1,958,455
Profit for the year 2007 2,117,469
Stock dividends (3,000,070)
Balance, December 31, 2007 1,075,854
Profit for the year 2008 3,356,351
Cash dividends {252,286)
Balance, December 31, 2008 4,179,919
Profit for the year 2009 2,345,409
Cash dividends {258,430)
Balance, December 31, 2009 6,266,898
Profit for the year 2010 1,720,783
Balance, December 31, 2010 $7,987,68(

The Company was registered with the Philippine Securiies and Exchange Commission on
September 1, 2003. :

On December 4, 2009, the Company declared cash dividends of Php0.02 per share with a value of
$258,430 out of the unrestricted retained earnings. The cash dividends were paid on
February 3, 2010.

On December 3, 2008, the Company declared cash dividends of Php0.02 per share with a value of
$252,286 out of the unrestricted retained earnings. The cash dividends were paid on
February 2, 2009.

On June 26, 2007, the Company declared 12% stock dividends corresponding to 64,177,449 shares
with a value of $3,000,070 to all stockholders of record as of November 20, 2007. The shares of
stock were issued and listed with the PSE on December 17, 2007.

On December 14, 2005, the Company declared 49.8% stock dividends corresponding to 101,099,610
shares with a value of $1,936,737 to all stockholders of record as of December 31, 2005. The shares
of stocks were issued on July 26, 2006.

We examined the minutes of meetings of the board of directors to verify the declaration of
dividends and checked the cash bank balances to verify cash disbursements for the cash dividends.

OPERATIONS

Overall Results

The Company experienced a drop in revenue from $44,212,082 in 2009 to $38,173,444 in 2010 due
to lower sales volume as a result of delays in the delivery of Fish. The tight supply of tuna was
caused by a natural phenomenon known as the “El Nifio” or the warming of the ocean’s surface, an
event which occurs every four (4) to five (5) years. The warming of the ocean’s surface causes tuna to
migrate to cooler and deeper waters making it more difficult to catch. The 4th quarter saw the
waning of El Nifio and the improvement of fish supply. Management expects the supply of fish to
stabilize in the aftermath of El Nifio.

1
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REVENUES
Sales of canned goods $35,331,519
Sales of fishmeal 2,841,925

$38,173,444

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business.

Sales of goods are recognized when there is a transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which
coincides with the transfer of the legal title or the passing of possession to the buyer.

We reviewed the sales during the period for overall reasonableness and examined supporting invoices
and delivery receipts and sales terms to determine that sales are recorded in the proper time periods.
We noted no exceptions.

COST OF GOODS MANUFACTURED AND SOLD $33,673,895
Materials used $25,597,365
Direct labor 2,710,046
Manufacturing overhead

Fuel 1,118,223
Fishmeal 1,088,815
Warehousing 445,266
Freight and handling 308,729
Indirect labor 281,676
Rental 259,568
Light and water 193,136
Laboratory 180,582
Repairs and maintenance 176,567
Deprediation and amortization 168,446
Qutside services 129,285
Consumables 96,535
Security fees 89,992
Representation and entertainment 56,376
Travel and communication 32,459
Amortization 25,627
Professional fees 6,622
Others 431,055
Total manufacturing costs 33,396,370
Finished goods, beginning 2,267,414
Total cost of goods manufactured 35,663,784
Finished goods, ending (1,989,889)
Cost of goods manufactured and sold $33,673,895

Others include insurance, cooperative labor services, office supplies, taxes and licenses and corporate
social responstbility expenses.

12
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OTHER OPERATING INCOME $70,955
Foreign exchange gain 63,214
Interest income 5,465
Gain on sale of fixed assets 2,276

$70,955

Foreign exchange gain pertains to realized and unrealized gain on transactions and balances
denominated in currencies other than US Dollars. We performed re-computation of the gain and
noted no material exceptions.

SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES $2,195,237
Salaries, wages and other benefits $ 721,516
Management fees 241,519
Rental 122,740
Depreciation and amortizatnon 120,424
Transportation and trave] 102,373
Representation and entertainment 94,896
Utilities and communication 76,331
Business development 61,739
Retirement benefit 60,068
OQutside services 50,568
Freight and handling 30,564
Materials and supplies 29,066
Frnge benefit tax 25,638
Fuel and oil 21,315
Membership dues 18,065
Repairs and maintenance 15,169
Other personnel expenses : 12,572
Taxes and licenses 10,459
Insurance 8,754
Condominium dues 8,423
Others ' 363,038

$2,195,237

We evaluated the reasonableness of reported cost and expenses by developing independent
expectations of the balances based on our understanding of the nature and trend of each item.
Furthermore, we ascertained the validity of these disbursements through examinaton of available
supplier’s invoices, payment documents and inquiry on the underlying nature of the transaction. We
verified these transactions to be appropriately recorded in the books and noted no exceptions.

Gain on sale of fixed assets resulted from the disposal of a vehicle. We examined related documents
and verified disposal. We noted no exceptions.

Interest income is composed of interest earned from savings bank deposit and short term money
market placements having an interest ranging from 2% to 2.5% in 2010. We agreed interest rates
against confirmation advice from the bank and noted no exceptons.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES $ 117,455

Bank charges include service charges, processing fees and other similar charges by the banks. We
verified book balance to bank statements, official receipts and other supporting documents. Noted
no exceptons.

13
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We reviewed significant contracts, agreements and minutes of the Board of Directors’ and
Shareholders’ meetings to obtain necessary supporting informaton on the transactions as reflected in
the accounts for the year ended December 31, 2010.

We sent a confirmation request to the Company’s legal counsel. We also reviewed with management
the possible existence of material contingencies and commitments that would require disclosure.
Based on the procedures performed, no contingency, commitment or material event existed after the
balance sheet date that would have an adverse effect on the Company’s financial statements as of
December 31, 2010.

A subsequent events review questionnaire was sent to the Company. The Company identified
subsequent events that occurred after the balance sheet date but before the date when the financial
statements were authorized for issue. Based on the responses, there were no subsequent events that
provide additional information about the Company’s financial position that should be reflected in the
financial statements. Furthermore, there were no other material events that need to be adjusted or
disclosed in the notes to the financdial statements.

Manabat Delgado Amper & Co.

BOA Registration No. 0004, valid from January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2012

SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-2, issued on January 28, 2010; effectuve until January 27, 2013
TIN 005299331

By:

onifacio F. Lumacang, Jr.
Partner
CPA License No. 0098090
SEC A.N. 0526-A, issued on May 13, 2010; effective until May 12, 2013
TIN 170035681
BIR A.N. 08-002552-18-2009, issued on April 7, 2009; effective untl April 6, 2012
PTR No. 2641942, 1ssued on January 3, 2011, Makati City

Makati City, Philippines
April 8, 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

ALLTANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
(Formerly Alliance Tuna International, Inc.)

Suite 1205, 1206 & 1405 East Tower

Philippine Stock Exchange Center, Exchange Road

Orugas Center, Pasig City

Report on the Financial Statements

. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Alliance Select Foods International, Inc.,
which comprise the statements of finanaal position as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, and
the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash
flows for the years then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. : '

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparaton and fair presentadon of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these finandal statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditng. Those standards require

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the finanaal statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedutes 1o obtatn audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the rsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are approprate 1n the crcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectaveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountdng esdmates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audir opinion. )

Deloi
e [0 E tte . Member of Deloitte Touche Tehmatsu



Cpinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairdy, m all malterial respects, the financial posiuon of
Alliance Select Foods International, Inc. as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reportng Standards. l

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our audits were conducted for the purpuse of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary informaton on taxcs and licenses in Note 33 to the financial
statements 1s presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue. Furthermore, the
supplementary information on the attached schedule showing the reconciliavon of the retained
carnings available for dividend declaration as of December 31, 2010, along with the other
supplementary informaton required by the Securities and Exchange Commission shown in schedules
A, B, C, D, E, F, G, Hand I are presented for purposes of additional analysis. Such supplementary
information is the responsibility of management and has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the supplementary information
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

=

Manabat Delgado Amper & Co.

TIN 005299331

BOA Registration No. (1004, valid from January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2012

SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-2, issued on January 28, 2010; effective until January, 27. 2013

By:

onifacio F. Lumacang, jr.
Pattner .
CPA License No. OU‘)B}W(
SEC'A.N. 0526-A, issued on May 13, 2010; effectve unul May 12, 2013
TIN 170035681
BIR A.N. 08-002552-18-2009, issued on April 7, 2009; effective untl Aprl 6, 2012
PTR No. 2641942, issued on January 3, 2011, Makau City

Makati City, Philippines
April 8, 2011
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(Formerly Allance Tuna intemasional, Inc.)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(In US Doliars)

Notes 2008
ASSETS
Current Assets /
Cash and cash equivalents 8 $ 327,525 § 440,108 $ 581,193
Trade and other receivables - net "9 8,157,754 4,684,745 5,611,194
Due {rom related parties 18 1,024,997 v 4,764,553 2,368,101
Inventories - net 10 3,814,026 3,520,636 11,524,162
Prepavments and other curtent assets 11 9,442,932 .~ 8.109,807 1123840
Toral Current Assets 25,767,234 21,525,849 21,208 490
Non-current Assets
Invesunent in an associate - a5 cost 13 240,964 240,964 240,964
Investments mn subsidianes - ai cost 12 5,236,839 1,451,078 499,000
Properry, plant and equipment - net 14 1,328,007 1,435,341 1,502,511
Onther non-current assets 15 2,373,816 _~" 2405036 2488714
Total Non-current Assers 9,179,626 . 5,532,419 4,731,189
$34,946,800 $27.058.208 $25.939 674
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and ouier pavables 16 $ 1,718,539 ¥ 1,506,723 $ 2,556,314
Loans pavable 17 10,754,848¢ | 3,580,049 J.al3470
Income 1ax pavable 31 7 683 . .
Totat Current Liabilines 12,474,070 - 5,086,772 06,169,784
Non-current Liabilities /
Loans pavable - net of current poroon 17 31,259 3,668* 5,681
Reurement benefit obligaton 19 233,678 184,340 134,964
Due to a related parsy 18 487,016 1,783,434 1,716,175
Total Non-current Liabibues 751,953 1,971,442 1.856,820
13,226,023 3 7,058,214 8,026,604
Equirty 0/
Share capial 20 11,540,14 11,540,140 11,540,140
Share premium 2,198, 790/ 2,198,790 2,198,790
Retained earmings 7,987 681/ 6.266,898 4,179,919
21,726,611 20,005,828 17,918,849
Treasur: shares 20 (5,774) / (5,774) (5,774)
21,720,837 20,000.054 §7.913.075

$23.939 679

See Wores 1o Financial Statements.




ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

{Formerty Allance Tuna Internavonal, Tneo

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In VS Dollars)

For the Years Ended December 31

Notes - 2(10 2009 2008

Revenues az $38,173,444 $44.212,082 $51,637.102
Coust of Goods Manufactured and Sold 23 33,673,895 39,409,647 45,627 469
Gross Profit 4,499,549 4,802,435 6,009,133
Other Operating Income 25 70,955 367549 89,304

4,570,504 5,169 984 6,098,527
Selling and Adminisirative Expenses 24 2,195,237 2247752 2312227
Other Operating Expenses 26 117,455 205,253 [57 D5R

2,312,692 2. 457,005 24700185
Proefit from Operations 2,237,812 3,712,979 3,628,342
Finance Costs 28 536,346 367,370 271,991
Profit Before Tax - 1,721,466 2,345,409 3,356,351
Income Tax Expense 31 683 - -
Profit for the Year $ 1,720,783 § 2345409 $ 3,356,151
Earnings Per Share
Basic eamnings per share 29 $0.003 50.004 $0.006
See Nores 10 Financial Starernenss,
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC,

(Formerly Alliance Tuna Intemational, Inc.)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(In US Dollars)

For the Years Ended December 31

Share Share Retained Treasury
Notes Capital Premium Earnings Shares Total
Balance, J2nuary 1, 2008 20 $11,540,140 $2,198790  §1,075854 (35,774) $14,809,010
Profit for the year - - 3,356,351 - 3,356,351
Cash dividends 21 . - (252,286) - (252.286)
Balance, December 31, 2008 20 11,540,140 2,198,790 4,179,919 {5,774) 17,913,075
Profic for the year - - 2,345,409 - 2,345,409
Cash dividends 21 - - (258,430) - (258,430)
Balance, December 31, 2009 20 11,540,140 2,198,790 6,266,898 (5,774) 20,000,054
Profit for the vear - - 1,720,783 - 1,720,783
Baiance, December 31, 2010 $11,540,140 $2,198,790 $7,987,681 (85,774) $21,720,837

See Noves ro Financial Scatements,
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

(Formerly Alliance Tuna International, Inc.)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In US Dollars)

For the Years Ended December 31

Notes 2010 2009 2008

Cash Flows from Operating Activitics
Profit before tax $ 1,721,466 $ 2,345,409 $ 3,356,351
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 14 288,870 261,845 252,509

Retrement benefit expense 19 60,068 44 849 37,569

Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain ) - net 12,057 4,527 (17,045)

Loss (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment 25 2,276} - 5,193
Interest income 25 (5,465) (6,181) (11,151)
Finance costs 28 536,346 367,570 271,991
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 2,611,066 3,018,019 3,895,417
Decrease (Increase) in:

Due from related parties . 739,556 (2,396,452) (2,112,227)

Trade and other receivables (3,473,009) 926,449 (150,221)

Inventosies {293,390) 8,003,526 (8,250,445)

Prepayments and other current assets (1,333,125) {6,985,967) 3,642,519
Increase (Decrease) in trade and other payables 396,719 (1,055,735) 1,280,632
Cash generated from (used in} operating activities (1,352,183) 1,509,840 (1,694,325
Contribution to retirement fund 19 (22,787) - -
Net cash from (used in) operating activities (1,374,970) 1,509,840 (1,694,325)
Cash Flows from Investing Activitics
Additions to property, plant and equipment 14 {242,888) (194,675) (164,892)
Additional investments in subsidiaries 12 (3,785,761) (895,078) (499,000
Collection from related parties 61,352 - 32,440
Additions to other non-current assets 31,220 26,678 26,248
Interest income received 25 5,465 6,181 11,151
Net cash used in investing activities (3,930,612) (1,056,894) {594,053)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Advances (payment) from a refated party {1,296,418) 67,259 1,258,916
Proceeds from bank loans 17 37,669,790 32,330,008 34,058,109
Payments of loans 17 (30,467,400) (32,365,442) (32,343 ,428)
Dividends paid 21 (258,430) (252,286) -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2,276 . 95
Finance costs paid 28 (462,819) (367,570) {262,567)
Net cash from (used in) inancng activities 5,186,999 (588,031) 2,711,125
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (118,583) (135,085) 422747
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 446,108 581,193 158,446
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End $ 327,525 § 446108 § 581,193

See Noewes o Financisl Stacemnents,
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g: ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

8l (Formerly Alliance Tuna International, Inc)

#  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

& {In US Dollars)
€
e
@ 1 CORPORATE INFORMATION
2l Alliance Select Foods International, Inc. (the “Company”) was registered with the Philippine
ﬁ: Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on September 1, 2003, primarily to engage in

the business of manufacturing and exporting canned tuna and other processed seafoods.
The Company is a public corporation under Section 17.2 of the Securities Regulaton
Code (SRC) and its shares were listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on
November 8, 2006.

On July 1, 2010, the Board of Directors resolved to change the corporate name from
Alliance Tuna International, Inc. to Alliance Select Foods International, Inc. The change in
corporate name was approved by the SEC on July 22, 2010.

The Company was registered with the Board of Investments (BOI) on August 24, 2004
under the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987, otherwise known as Executive Order No.
226, on a non-pioneer status as new export producer of canned tuna and its by-product,
fishmeal. As a registered entity, the Company is entitled to certain incentives such as income
tax holiday for four (4) years from the date of registration and subject for approval of
extenston by the BOI, tax credit on raw materials and supplies used for export products, and
additional deduction for labor expense, subject to certain requirements under the terms of its
BOI registraton.

The Company’s office is located at Suite 1205, 1206 & 1405 East Tower, Philippine Stock
Exchange Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. Its plant faciliies are located
in Barrio Tambler, General Santos City.

2, FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), which includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS), and interpretatons issued by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretaions Committee (IFRIC) as approved by the Financial Reporting
Standard Coundil (FRSC) and adopted by the SEC.

Basis of Preparation and Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments carried at amortized cost.

These financial statements are presented in US Dollar, the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates.

These are the Company’s separate financial statements. Separate financial statements are
those presented by a parent, an investor in an assodiate or a venturer in a jointly controlled
entity in which the investments are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather
than on the basis of the reported results and net assets of the investees.
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ADOQOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards Effective in 2010

The “Improvements to PFRSs 2009” that have been published by the Internauonal
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and issued by the FRSC in the Philippines were adopted
by the Company effective January 1, 2010.

“Improvements to PFRSs 2009,” is a collection of amendments to twelve PFRS, issued by
the FRSC which comprise the latest set of annual improvements. The FRSC uses the annual
improvements project to make necessary, but non-urgent, amendments to PFRS that will not
be included as part of another major project. The 2009 amendments reflect issues that were
included in exposure drafts of (a) proposed amendments to PFRS in October 2007; (b)
proposed amendments to PFRS in August 2008; and (c) January 2009.

The adopted amendments arising from the improvements in 2009 affect the following PFRS:

PAS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements,” “Current/non-current classification of convertible
instruments,” clarifies that the potential settlement of a liability by the issue of equity is not
relevant to its classification as current or non-current. By amending the definition of current
liability, the amendment permits a liability to be classified as non-current (provided that the
entity has an unconditional right to defer settlement by transfer of cash or other assets for at
least 12 months after the accounting period) notwithstanding the fact that the entity could be
required by the counterparty to settle in shares at any time.

PAS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows,” “Classification of expenditures on unrecognized assets,”
requires that only expenditures that result in a recognized asset in the statemnent of financial
position can be classified as investing actvities.

PAS 17, “Leases,” “Classification of leases of land and Buildings,” deletes specific guidance
regarding classification of leases of land, so as to eliminate inconsistency with the general
guidance on lease classification. As a result, leases of land should be classified as either
finance or operating using the general principles of PAS 17.

PAS 18, ‘Revenue,” “Determining whether an entity is acting as a principal or as an agent,”
additional guidance added to the appendix to PAS 18 regarding the determination as to
whether an entity is acting as a principal or an agent.

PAS 36, ‘Impairment of Assets,” “Unit of accounting for goodwill impatrment test,” clarifies
that the largest cash-generating unit (or group of units) to which goodwill should be allocated
for the purposes of impairment testing is an operatmg segment as defined by paragraph 5 of
PFRS 8, “Operating Segments” (Le. before the aggregation of segments with similar economic
characteristics permitted by PFRS 8.12).

PAS 27 (Revised 2008), “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements)” deals with changes in
ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a change in control. The absence of
specific requirements in PFRS, increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were treated in
the same manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain purchase gain
being recognized where appropriate; for decreases in interests in existing subsidiaries that did
not involve a loss of control, the difference between the consideration received and the
carrying amount of the share of net assets disposed of was recognized in profit or loss.
Under PAS 27 (Revised 2008), all such increases or decreases are dealt with in equity, with no
impact on goodwill or profit or loss. When control of a subsidiary is lost as a result of a
transacton, event or other circumstance, PAS 27 (Revised 2008) requires that “the group”
derecognize all assets, habilites and non-controlling interests at their carrying amount. Any
retained interest in a former subsidiary is recognized at its fair value at the date control is lost,
with the gain or loss arising recognized in profit or loss.

b
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The adoption of these improvements did not result in any adjustment or additional
disclosure in the Company’s financial statements.

New Accounting Standards Effective Subsequent to the Accounting Period Ended
December 31, 2010

The Company will adopt the following PFRS:

a. Amendment to PAS 32 - Finandal Instruments Presentation

b. 'IFRIC 19 - Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
¢. PAS 24 (Revised 2009) - Related Party Disclosures

d. Amendments to IFRIC 14 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

e. Improvements to PFRSs 2010

Amendment to PAS 32, “Financial Instruments Presentation,” states that for rights issues
offered for a fixed amount of foreign currency, current practice appears to require such
issues to be accounted for as derivative hiabiliies. The amendment states that if such nghts
are issued pro rata to all the entity’s existing shareholders in the same class for a fixed
amount of currency, they should be classified as equity regardless of the currency in which
the exercise price is denominated.

IFRIC 19, “Extinguishing financial labilities " with equity instruments,” clarifies the
requirements of PFRS when an enuty renegotiates the terms of a financial lability with its

creditor and the creditor agrees to accept the entity’s shares or other equity instruments to
settle the financial liability fully or pardally.

The IASB has revised PAS 24, “Related Party Disclosures,” in response to concerns that the
previous disclosure requirements and the definition of a ‘related party’ were too complex and
difficult to apply in practice, especially in environments where government controls is
pervasive. The revised standard addresses these concerns by providing a partial exemption
for government-related entities and providing a revised definition of a related party. The
IASB has simplified the definition and removed inconsistencies.

The Amendments to IFRIC 14, “The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction,” correct an unintended consequence of IFRIC 14.
Without the amendments, entities are not permitted to recognize as an asset some voluntary
prepayments for minimum funding contributions. This was not intended when IFRIC 14
was issued, and the amendments correct the problem. The amendments should be applied
retrospectively to the earliest comparative period presented.

The following summarizes the amendments and transitional provisions of the Improvements
to PFRSs 2010. Unless otherwise noted, the proposed effective date for the amendments is
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011. Earlier application is permitted in
all cases.

PFRS 7, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures™

“Clarificaions of disclosures” emphasizes the interaction between quantitative and
qualitative disclosures and the nature and extent of risks associated with financial
instruments.

Amendments to quantitative and credit risk disclosures are as follows:

a. Clarfy that only financial asset whose carrying amount does not reflect the maximum
exposure to credit sk need to provide further disclosure of the amount that represents
the maximum exposure to such risk.
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b. Requires for all financial assets, disclosure of the financial effect of collateral held as
security and other credit enhancements regarding the amount that best represents the
maximum exposure to credit risk (e.g,, a description of the extent to which collateral
mutgates credit risk).

c. Remove disclosure of the collateral held as security, other credit enhancements and an
estimate of their fair value for financial assets that are past due but not impaired, and
financial assets that are individually determined to be impaired.

d. Remove the requirement to specifically disclose financial assets renegotiated to avoid
becoming past due or impaired.

e. Clarify that the additional disclosure required for finandcial assets obtained by taking
possession of collateral or other credit enhancements are only applicable to assets still
held at the reporting date.

PAS 1, ‘Presentation of Finandal Statements,” clarifies that an entity will present an analysis of
other comprehensive income for each component of equity, either in the statement of
changes in equity or in the notes to the financial statements.

PAS 27, “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,” clarifies that the amendments made to
PAS 21, “The Effect of Changes in Foreign Rates,” PAS 28, “Investments in Associates,”
and PAS 31, “Interest in Joint Ventures” as a result of PAS 27 (2008) should be applied
prospectively.

PAS 34, “Interim Financial Reporting”

Significant events and transactions provide guidance to illustrate how to apply disclosure
principles in PAS 34 and add disclosure requirements around:

*+ The drecumstances likely to affect fair values of financial instruments and their
classification;

»  Transfers of financial instruments between different levels of the fair value hierarchy;
*  Changes in classification of financial assets; and

*  Changes in contingent liabilities and assets.

IFRIC 13, “Customer Loyalty Programmes”

Clarifies that when the fair value of award credits is measured based on the value of the
awards for which they could be redeemed, the amount of discounts or incentives otherwise
granted to customers not participating in the award credit scheme, is to be taken into account

Management has yet to determine the effect of the adoption of these standards on the
Company’s financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized in the Company’s financial statements when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are
recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of
the Company’s financial assets except for investments classified at fair value through profit
or loss.



The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire; or when the Company transfers the financal asset and
substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized
borrowing for the proceeds received. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset derecognized and the consideration received or recervable is recognized in
profit or loss.

Finandal assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair
value through profit or loss’, ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ finanaal
assets and loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the ttme of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and
receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment. Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables, when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a finanaal
asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effectve interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment
have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment

For all finandal assets carried at amortized cost, objectve evidence of impairment could
include:

» Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
e Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

¢ It becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or finanaial re-organization;
or

¢ The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficultes.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade recervables, assets that are assessed not
to be impaired individually are, in additon, assessed for impairment on a collectve basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Company’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period as well as observable changes in nanonal or local
economic conditons that correlate with default on receivables.



Financal assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at
amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, i.e, the effectve interest rate computed at initial recognition.
The carrying amount of financial assets carried at amortized cost is reduced directly by the
impairment loss with the exception of trade receivables, wherein the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When trade receivables are considered
uncollectible, these are written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recovenies of
amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss shall be reversed. The reversal shall not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognized at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount
of the reversal shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs comprise direct
materials, direct labor costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated
costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distributing the goods.

When the net realizable value of the inventories is lower than the cost, the Company
provides for an allowance for the decline in the value of the inventory and recognizes the
write-down as an expense in the profit or loss.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized.

Prepayments

Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash. Prepayments are
initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsequently, these are
charged to income as they are consumed in operations or expire with the passage of time.

Prepayments are classified in the statements of financial position as current asset when the
cost of goods or services related to the prepayments are expected to be incurred within one
year or the Company’s normal operating cycle, whichever is longer. Otherwise, prepayments
are classified as non-current asset.

Investment in Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a parmership that is
controlled by the Company. The Company has control over an entity if it has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
actvities.

Investment in subsidiaries in the Companies separate financial statements is carried at cost
less impairment in value of individual investments.
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Investments in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither
a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those polides. ' '

Investment in an associate in the Company’s separate financial statements is carried in the
statements of finandal position at cost less any impairment in the value of individual
investments.

The Company’s accounting policy for impairment of financial assets are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognize any impairment loss with respect to its investment in an
associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment {(including goodwall)
is tested for impatrment in accordance with the Company’s accountng policy on inpairment
of tangible and intangible assets as a single asset by companng its recoverable amount (higher
of value-in-use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognized forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Special Purpose Entity

The Company has established one special purpose entity (SPE) for investment purposes.
The Company has direct shareholdings in this entity. An SPE is consolidated if, based on an
evaluation of the substance of its relationship with the Company and the SPE’s risks and
rewards, the Company concludes that it controls the SPE. SPE controlled by the Company
was established under terms that impose strict limitatons on the decision-making powers of
the SPE’s management and that result in the Company receiving the majority of the benefits
related to the SPE’s operations and net assets, being exposed to the majority of risks incident
to the SPE’s activities, and retaining the majority of the residual or ownership risks related to
the SPEs or therr assets,

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are inittally measured at cost. At the end of each reporting
period, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less any subsequent
accumulated depreciaton and amortization. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
artributable to the acquisidon of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the
cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets
to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the
items and restoring the site on which they are located, and borrowing costs on qualifying
assets.

Subsequent expenditures relating to an item of property, plant and equipment that have
already been recognized are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits, in excess of the onginally assessed standard of performance of
the existing asset, will flow to the Company. All other subsequent expenditures are
recognized as expenses in the period in which those are incurred.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Machinery and equipment 15 years
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Plant furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Transportation equipment 5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortzed over the improvements’ useful life of seven (7) years
ot when shorter, the term of the relevant lease.
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Gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit
or loss.

Impairment of Tangible Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses whether there is any indication
that any of its tangible assets may have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indicaton
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In assessing
value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized as an expense.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets,
impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting
period for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial habiliies or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements.

Financial lfabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized in the Company’s financial statements when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are
initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of

the Company’s financial liabilities, except for debt instruments classified at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial Habilites at fair value through profit or
loss or designated upon inidal recognition.

Since the Company does not have financial liabilities classified at fair value through profit or
loss, all financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effectuve
interest method, with interest expense recognized on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is 2 method of calculatng the amortized cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recogniton.
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Financial liabilides are derecognized by the Company when the obligation under the liabikity
is discharged, cancelled or has expired. The difference berween the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit

or loss.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax. The
costs of acquiring Company’s own shares are shown as a deduction from equity attributable
to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. When such shares
are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

Employee Benefits

Short-term benefits

The Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an expense for services
rendered by employees during the accounting period. A liability is also recognized for the
amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit sharing plans if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

Post-employment benefits

The Company has a non-contributory retirement plan. The post-employment expense is
determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method which reflects services rendered by
employees to the date of valuation and incorporates assumptons concerning employees’
projected salaries. Post-employment expenses include current service cost plus amortization
of past service cost, experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions over the
expected average remaining working lives of the covered employees. Cumulative actuarial
gains and losses in excess of the 10% of present value of the defined benefit obligadon were
amortized over the expected average remaining working lifetime of the employees and
recognized as part of retirement expense.

Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested,
and otherwise is amortized on a straight-line basis over the average period untl the benefits
become vested.

The retirement benefit obligaton recognized in the statements of financial position
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized
past service cost and unrecognized actuarial gain or losses.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue 1s measured at the far
value of the consideratdon received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods provided in the normal course of business.
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Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities 1s measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume
rebates. Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions are
satisfied:

a. the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods;

b. the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

d. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transacton will flow to the
Company; and

e. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Interest income is accrued on a tme proportion basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exacty
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financal asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount.

Expense Recognition

Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefit related
to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured rehably.
Expenses are recognized in profit or loss on the basis of a direct assocation between the
costs incurred and the earning of specific items of income; on the basis of systematic and
rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over several
accounting perods and the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly
determined; or immediately when an expenditure produces no future economic benefits or
when, and to the extent that, future economic benefits do not qualify or cease to qualify, for
recognition in the statements of financial position as an asset.

Expenses in the statements of comprehensive income are presented using the function of
expense method. Cost of goods manufactured and sold are expenses incurred that are
associated with the goods sold and includes components of cost of goods manufactured and
sold. Operating expenses are costs attributable to selling and administrative activities of the
Company.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substandally all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except when another systematc basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contngent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives
are recognized as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except when another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

10
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Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in currencies other than US Dollars are recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses arising on retranslation are
included in profit or loss.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisiion, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of tme to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the perod in which they are
incurred.

Related Parties

Related parties are parties that control or have significant influence over the reporting entity
(including parent entiies, owners and their farilies, major investors, and key management
personnel) and partes that are controlled or significantly influenced by the reporting enuty
(including subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates, and post employment benefit plans).

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax expense and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
net profit as reported in the statements of comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s registered product is granted an
income tax holiday (ITH) from August 24, 2004 to August 23, 2011. After the ITH, current
tax payable is calculated using 30% tax rate under normal taxation, or 2% of defined gross
income under minimum corporate income tax (MCIT), whichever is higher.

Earnings per Share

The Company computes its basic earnings per share by dividing profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
issued and outstanding during the petiod.

Events after the Reporting Period

The Company identifies events after the end of the reporting period as those events, both
favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date
when the finandal statements are authorized for issue. The financial statements of the
Company are adjusted to reflect those events that provide evidence of conditions that existed
at the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.

1
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, Management is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on the historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

Critical judgment, apart from those involving estimations, that Management have made in
the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in financial statements pertains to functional currency.

Segment reporting

The Company’s revenue is classified into sales of canned goods and sales of fishmeal
Although the revenue can be identified separately, the Company uses the same assets and
resources for its sales of canned goods and sales of fishmeal activities. Since the segregation
and/or identification/allocation of those resources for each activity are impracticable,
Management believes that the Company is exempted from segment reporting,

Functional currency

Based on the economic substance of the undetlying circumstances relevant to the Company,
the functional currency of the Company has been determined to be US Dollar. The US
Dollar is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates. Itis the currency that mainly influences the Company in determining the costs and
selling price of its inventories.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliuies within the next financial year:

Estimating useful lives of assets

The useful lives of the Company’s property, plant and equipment are estimated based on the
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives
are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due
to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on
the use of the Company’s property, plant and equipment. In addition, the estimation of the
useful lives is based on the Company’s collective assessment of industry practice, internal
technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future
results of operations could be materally affected by changes in estimates brought about by
changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and dming of recorded expenses for any
period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A reductdon in the
estimated useful lives of assets would increase the recognized operating expenses and
decrease non-current assets.
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As of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the carrying amounts of the Company’s property,
plant and equipment amounted to $1,328,007, $1,435,341and $1,502,511, respecuvely. Total
accumulated depreciation as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 amounted to §1,186,961,
$948,774 and $6806,929, respectively, as disclosed in Note 14.

Asset impairment

The Company performs an impairment review when certain impairment indicators are
present.

Determining the fair value of property, plant and equipment and investments in associates
and subsidiaries, which requires the determination of future cash flows expected to be
generated from the continued use and ultmate disposition of such assets, requires the
Company to make estimates and assumptions that can matendally affect the financial
statements. Future events could cause the Company to conclude that property, plant and
equipment and investments are tmpaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have 2
material adverse impact on the financial position and results of operations.

The preparation of the estimated future cash flows involves significant judgment and
estimations. While the Company believes that its assumptions are appropriate and
reasonable, significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the assessment of
recoverable values and may lead to future additional impairment charges under PFRS.

As of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, Management believes that the recoverable
amounts of the Company s property, plant and equipment and investments in associates and
subsidiaries exceed their carrying amounts. Consequently, no impairment loss was recognized
in those years.

Estimating allowances for doubtful accounts

The Company estimates the allowance for doubtful accounts related to its trade and other
receivables based on assessment of specific accounts when the Company has information
that certain customers are unable to meet their financial obligations. In these cases,
judgment used was based on the best available facts and circumstances including but not
limited to, the length of reladonship with the customer and the customer’s current credit
status based on third party credit reports and known market factors. The Company uses
judgment to record specific reserves against amounts due from customers to reduce the
expected collectible amounts. These specific reserves are re-evaluated and adjusted as
additional information received impacts the amounts estmated.

The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if different
judgments were made or different esumates were utilized. An increase in the alowance for
doubtful accounts would increase the recognized operatng expenses and decrease current
assets.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, Management believes that the collectability of their
receivables and due from related parties is certain. Consequently, no provision for doubtful
accounts was recognized in both years.

As of December 31, 2008, allowance for doubtful accounts amounted to $17,055.

Net trade and other receivables as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 amounted to
$8,157,754, $4,684,745 and $5,611,194, respectvely, as disclosed in Note 9. Due from
related parties as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 amounted to $4,024,997, §4,764,553,
and $2,368,101, respectively, as disclosed in Note 18,

13
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Estimating net realizable value of inventories

The net realizable value of inventories represents the estumated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. The Company
determines the estimated selling price based on the recent sale transactions of similar goods
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date the
transactions occurred. The Company records provision for excess of cost over net realizable
value of inventories. While the Company believes that the esumates are reasonable and
appropriate, significant differences in the actual experience or significant changes in estimates
may materially affect the profit or loss and equity.

Total inventories recognized in the Company’s statements of financial position amounted to
$3,814,026, $3,520,636 and $11,524,162 which are net of the related allowance for
write-down amounting to $7,678 as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, as
disclosed in Note 10.

Post-employment and other employee benefits

The determinaton of the retirement obligation cost and other retirement benefits is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such
amounts. Those assumptions include among others, discount rates, expected returns on plan
assets and rates of compensation increase. In accordance with PFRS, actual results that
differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and
therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future
periods. While the Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate,
significant differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may
materially affect the pension and other retirement obligations.

Based on Management estimates, actuarial assumptions made on June 10, 2010 did not
change significantly over the year.

Retirement expense amounted to $60,068, $44,849 and $37,569 for 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, as disclosed in Note 19 and accrued retirement obligation recognized amounted
to $233,678, $184,340 and $134,964 as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s activities expose it 1o a variety of financial risks: market nsk (which includes
formgn exchange risk and fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, hqmdity risk
and interest rate risk. The Company’s overall risk management program seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company. The policies for
managing specific risks are summarized below:

The Company seeks to mitigate its transactional currency exposures by maintaining its costs
at consistent levels, regardless of any upward or downward movements in the foreign
currency exchange rates.

Marker risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices will affect the Company’s profit or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the retum.

There has been no change to the Company’s exposure to market risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the nsk.

14
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Foreign esccbange risk

The Company undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Hence,
exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise with respect to transactions denominated in
Philippine Peso. Foreign exchange rsk arises from future commercial transactions when
recognized assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s
functional currency. Significant fluctuadon in the exchange rates could significantly affect
the Company’s financial positon.

The Company seeks to mitigate its transactional currency exposures by maintaining its costs
at consistent level, regardless of any upward or downward movements in the foreign
currency exchange rates.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

201) 2009 2008
Cash and cash equivalents $ 228,944 $ 166,813 $ 169,520
Trade and other receivables - net 369,848 362,259 568,204
Due from related parties 3,570,350 4,277,793 2,234,674
Trade and other payables (1,228,188) (950,295) (1,697,519)
Cutrent portion of loans payable (2,159,514) (27,820) {7,601)
Loans payable - net of current portion (31,359 (3,668) {5,681)

$ 750,081 $3,825,082 $1,261,597

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 10 % increase and decrease in the
functional currency of the Company against the relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity
rate used in reporting foreign currency risk is 10 % and it represents Management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitvity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a 10% increase or decrease foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes all of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities. A positive number below indicates an increase in net profit when the
functional currency of the Company weakens 10 % against the relevant currency. For a
10 % strengthening of the functional currency of the Company against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the net profit and the balances below would
be negative.

Effect on Net Profit
2010 2009 2008
Cash and cash equivalents (¢ 22,894) (3 16,681) $ 16,952)
Trade and other receivables - net (36,985) (36,226) (56,820)
Due from related parties (357,035) (427,779) (223,467)
Trade and other payables 122,819 95,030 169,752
Current portion of loans payable 215,951 2,782 760
Loans payable - long-term 3,136 367 568
$ 75,008 $382,507 ($126,159)

13
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Interest rate risk

The primary soutce of the Company’s interest rate risk relates to debt instruments and due to
a related party. The interest rates on these liabilities are disclosed in Note 17.

The balances are short-term and long-term in nature and with the current interest rate level,
any variation in the interest will not have a material impact on the net profit of the Company.

Bank and mortgage loans amounting to $10,786,107, $3,583,717 and $3,619,151 as of
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, were arranged at interest rates from ranging
from 4% to 7% for bank loans and 10.65% per annum for morigage loans and exposes the
Company to fair value interest rate nisk.

An estimate of 50 basis points increase or decrease 1s used in reporting interest rate changes
and represents Management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

The effect of a 50 basis points change in interest rate on net profit for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 is an increase or decrease of $35,924, $18,007 and
$13,809, respectively. This is mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates
on its borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligatons
resulting in financial loss to the Company.

The Company’s credit risk is primarily atuibutable to trade and other receivables and due
from related parties.

‘The Company has adopted a policy of extending sufficient credit terms to customers such as,
letter of credits and documents against payment as a means of mitigating the risk of financial
loss from defaults. The Company only transacts with entities that are rated the equivalent of
investment grade. The Company uses publicly available financial information and its own
trading records to rate its major customers.

The amounts presented in the statements of financial position are net of allowances for
doubtful receivables, estimated by Management based on pror experience and their
assessment of the current economic environment as disclosed in Note 9.

The carrying amounts of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, represent the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any
collateral obtained:

2010 2009 2008
Cash and cash equivalents $ 308,212 § 438,123 § 563,746
Trade and other receivables 8,157,754 4,684,745 5,611,194
Due from related partes 4,024,997 4,764,553 2,368,101

$12,490,963  §9,887,421  §8,543,041

16



The following table details the credit quality of the Company’s neither past due nor
impaired financial assets:

Neither Past Due nor Impaired

Satisfactory
High Grade Grade Total

2010
Cash and cash equivalents $ 308,212 $ - $ 308,212
Trade and other receivables 3,803,431 2,004,612 5,808,043
Due from related partes 26,839 3,998,158 4,024,997

$4,138,482 $6,002,770  §10,141,252
2009
Cash and cash equivalents $ 438,123 $ - $ 438,123
Trade and other receivables 3,615,034 - 3,615,034
Due from related parties 4,764,553 - 4,764,553

$8,817,710 3 - $8,817,710
2008
Cash and cash equivalents $ 563,746 $ - $ 563,746
Trade and other receivables 3,508,319 - 3,508,319
Due from related parties 2,368,101 - 2,368,101

$6,440,166 $ - $6,440,166

The Company uses intemal ratings to determine the credit quality of its financial assets.
These have been mapped to the summary rating below:

High Grade - applies to highly rated financial obligors, strong corporate counterparties and
personal borrowers with whom the Company has excellent repayment experience.

Satisfactory Grade — applies to financial assets that are performing as expected, including loans
and advances to small and medium sized entities and recently established businesses.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and

stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or rsking damage to the
Company’s reputation.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves in cash in bank,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and habilities.
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The following table details the Company’s remaining contractual marturity for its
non-derivative financial liabiliies. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be

required to pay.

Within  More Than
One Year One Year Total
2010
Trade and other payables $ 1,662,453 $ - $ 1,662,453
Loans payable 10,754,848 31,259 10,786,107
Due to a related party 487,016 - 487,016
$12,904,317 $31,259 $12,935,576
2009
Trade and other payables $1,477.306 $ - $ 1,477,306
Loans payable 3,580,049 3,668 3,583,717
Due to a related party 1,785,434 - 1,783,434
$6.842,789 $3,668 $6,844 457
2008
Trade and other payables $2,509,507 $ - $2,509,507
Loans payable 3,613,470 5,681 3,619,151
Due to a related party 1,716,175 - 1,716,175
$7,839,152 $5,681 $7,844,833

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

a. continue as a going concer;

b. have enough funds for future expanston;

c. finance the increase in sales; and

d. provide adequate returns to the shareholders.

The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2009.

The Company’s capital structure relies more on equity than debt. The debt component of
the capital structure is primatily short-term to finance the Company’s working capital needs.
‘Two local banks have extended to the Company revolving credit line facilities in the form of
export packing credit; export bills purchase line and LC/TR line. The Company likewise was
granted with a clean short-term revolving credit facility by an investment bank.

The debt to equity ratic of the Company at each reporting period is way above the
acceptable range as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Debt $11,273,123 $ 5,367,151  § 5,335,326
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 327,525 446,108 581,193
Net debt 10,945,598 4,921,043 4,754,133
Eaquity 21,720,837 20,000,054 17,913,075
Diebt to equity ratic 0.50:1 0.25:1 0.27:1

18
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Debt is composed of loans payable and due to a related party as discussed in Notes 17 and
18, respectively, while equity includes share capital and reserves of the Company.

Management believes that the above ratios are within the acceptable range.

‘The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2010 2009 2008
Cash on hand and in banks $327,525 $266,892 £307.427
Cash equivalents - 179,216 183,766

$327,525 $446,108 $581,193

Cash in banks earned an average interest of 2% during 2010, 2009 and 2008. Cash in banks
are unrestricted and immediately available for use in the current operations of the Company.

Cash equivalents represent money market placements, with annual interest of 1.45% and 2%
in 2009 and 2008, respecuvely.

Interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents amounted to $5,465, §6,181 and
$11,151 in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, as disclosed in Note 25.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - net

. 2010 2009 2008
Trade $6,089,746 $4,359,924 $5,274,344
Qthers 2,068,008 324,821 353,905
8,157,754 4,684,745 5,628,249
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts - - 17,055

$8,157,754 $4,684,745 $5,611,194

Others include claims receiw'lble, advances to employees and S5S refund.

The average credit period taken on sales of goods is 50 days. No interest is charged on the
receivables even if they exceed credit terms.

Included in the Company’s trade and other receivables are debtor’s accounts which are past
due with a carrying amount of $2,349,711, $1,069,711 and $2,102,875 as of
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, for which the Company has not provided
an allowance as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are
still considered recoverable.

Aging of accounts that are past due but not impaired:

2010 2009 2008
1 to 30 days past due $2,095,826 $1,011,639 $1,996,168
31 to 60 davs past due 253,885 58,072 106,707

$2,349,711 $1,069,711 $2,102,875

19
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Movement in the allowance for doubtful accounts:

2010 2009 2008
Balance, January 1 $ - $17,055 $17,055
Amounts written off as uncollectible - (17,055) -
Balance, December 31 $ - § - $17,055
INVENTORIES - net
Note 2010 2009 2008
Finished goods - canned tuna 23  $1,989,889 $2267414 § 8,477,100
Finished goods in transit - canned tuna - - 59,673
Raw materals 1,640,398 1,103,325 2,851,982
Parts and supplies 191,417 157,575 143,085
3,821,704 3,528,314 11,531,840
Less: Allowance for inventory obsolescence 7,678 7,678 7,678

$3,814,026  $3,520,636 $11,524,162

The inventories recognized as expense in 2010, 2009 and 2008 amounted to $33,673,895,
$39,409,647 and $45,627,969, respectively, as disclosed in Note 23.

The carrying amounts of inventories recognized at fair value less cost to sell amounted to
$1,632,720, $1,095,647 and $2,844,304 as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

2010 2009 2008
Deposits - fish supplier and others $8,723,021 $7,993,681 § 987,730
Prepaid insurance 442,494 7,049 11,421
Prepaid importation 7,652 063,312 88,082
Others 269,765 45,765 36,607

$9,442,932 $8,109,807 $1,123,840

Deposits relate to the Company’s exclusive agreement with a fish supplier. As provided in
the agreement, the Company is required to make a 50% advance payment based on agreed
price and quantity, upon closing of the contract with the supplier. This shall be subsequently
liquidated against the total cost of fish delivered to the plant.

The advance payment extended to the fish supplier is secured by a chattel mortgage over
their vessels.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - at cost

The details of the Company’s investments in subsidiaries are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
PT Intemational Aliance Foods Indonesia (PTIAFT) $4,499,000 § 825,600 $499,000
Prime Foods NZ Ltd. (PFINZ) 604,380 604,380 -
Big Glory Bay Salmon and Seafood Co., lac. (BGB) 124,846 21,098 -
Alliance MHI Properties, Inc. (AMIHI) 8,613 - -

$5,236,839 51,451,078 $499,000

20
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PTIAF]

PTIAFI was established under the Indonesian law within the framework of the Foreign
Capital Investment Law No. 25 year 2007 based on Notarial Deed No. 101 dated
May 21, 2001. The Deed of Establishment was approved by the Minister of Justice of the
Republic of Indonesia in his Decision Letter No. AHU-24298.AH.01.01 dated May 28, 2008.
The Company’s percentage of ownership interest is 89.98%, 79.9% and 99.8% for 2010,
2009 and 2008, respectively.

PTIAF] is a tuna processing company put up in Indonesia in joint venture with an
Indonesian fishing company, PT Wailan Pratama.

PTIAFT is primarily engaged in canned fish processing industry exclusively for interational
market. The plant is located in J1. Raya Madidir Kelurahan Madidir Unet Ling, II Kecamatan
Madidir, Bitung, Indonesia.

On May 26, 2010 the Board of Directors authorized the Company to increase its equity
investment in PTIAFI from $825,600 to $4,499,000 by converting its outstanding cash
advances in the amount of §3,673,400 into equity and applying the same as payment for the
additional 3,673,400 shares at a par value of $1.00. The percentage ownership thus increased
from 79.92% to 89.98%. The Company’s partner in the subsidiary, PT Wailan Pratama, will
also convert part of its advances and increase its shareholdings from 206,400 shares to
500,001 shares with 2 par value of $1.00.

The significant information on the financial statements of PTIAF] are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Total assets $8,150,038 $5,640,618 $2,721,730
Total liabilites 3,269,672 4,866,631 2,249,333
Net assets $4,880,366 $ 773,987 § 472,397
Revenues $6,371,203 $2,629,476 $27,603
Cost and expenses 6,231,824 2,860,886 -
Profit (Loss) for the year $ 139,379 (§ 231,410 $ 27,603

PFNZ

PFNZ is a company domiciled in New Zealand and registered under the Companies Act of
1993 on September 8, 1993. The Ministry of Economic Development assigned company
number 625998 to PFNZ as part of its registration process. The Company’s percentage of
ownership interest is 50% + 1 share for 2010 and 2009.

PFNZ is primarly engaged in the business of processing, manufacturing and distributing
smoked salmon and other seafood under the Prime Smoke and Studholme brand for
distribution in New Zealand and other countries. The plant is located in Hororata RD2
Darfield.

The significant information on the financial statements of PFNZ are as follows:

2010 2009
Total assets $3,078,909 $2,660,643
Total liabihites 2,100,202 1,429,143
Net assets $ 978,707 $1,231,500
Revenues $4,061,105 $4,178,454
Cost and expenses 4,320,039 4,268,629
Loss for the vear ($ 258,934) (8 90,175)
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BGB

BGB was registered with the Philippine SEC on October 29, 2009. BGB was established
primarily to engage in the business of manufacturing goods such as salmon and other
processed seafoods and was issued registration number CS200916903. Its registered address
is Suite 1206 East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Center, Exchange Road, Orugas
Center, Pasig City. The Company’s percentage of ownership interest is 55.8% and 99.9% for
2010 and 2009, respectively.

The construction of the salmon processing plant in General Santos City is still on-going as of
December 31, 2010. BGB is on its pre-operating stage.

The significant information on the financial statements of BGB are as follows:

2010 2009
Total assets $1,320,629 $93,266
Total labilides 1,097,222 72,316
Net assets $ 223,407 $20,950
Revenues $ 6,969 $ 38
Cost and expenses 11,630 643
Loss for the year (§ 4,661 (3 605

AMIHI

AMIHI was registered with the Philippine SEC on June 18, 2010. AMIHI was established
primarily to engage in the business as a property holding company and was issued
registration number CS201009131. Its registered address is Suite 1205 East Tower,
Philippine Stock Exchange Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City.

AMIHI is a Special Purpose Entity (SPE) and considered a subsidiary of the Company. The
percentage of ownership interest of the Company is 40% for 2010.

AMIHI has not started its commercial operations as of December 31, 2010.

Management believes that there is no indication of impairment on its investments in
subsidianes.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - at cost

Summarized financial information of the associate follows:

2010 2009 2008
Total assets $2,439,746 $2,614,212 $2,818,156
Total Liabilities 2,482,534 2,818,156 2,828 980
Net assets ($ 42,788) (§ 203944) (3 10824
Revenues $4,488,332 $4,472,316 $5,825,947
Cost and expenses 4,424,358 4,570,573 5,728,047
Profit (Loss) for the vear $ 63,974 (8 98,257) $ 97,900

Investment in an associate pertains to the Company’s 40% ownership interest in FDCP Inc. as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009.

FDCP Inc. is engaged in the manufacturing and wholesale of tin cans.

Management believes that there is no indication of impairment on its investment in an
associate.
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14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - net
Office Fumniture, Plant
Leaschold  Machinery and  Transportation Fixtures Fumitre
Notes Improvements  Equipment Equipment and Equipment _and Fixtures Total
Cost
Balance, January 1, 2008 $510,755  $1,118,887 £338,142 $107,651 $7,972  $2,083,407
Additions 17,025 84 750 35,569 25,794 1,754 164,892
Trade-in - - 83,437 . - 83,437
Disposals - (102,815) (209) (103,024)
Transfer (39.272) - - (39,272
Balance, December 31, 2008 527,780 1,164,365 354,333 133,236 9726 2,189,440
Additions 31,497 83,696 64,806 13,975 701 194,675
Balance, December 31, 2009 550277 1,248,061 419,139 147211 10427 2,384,115
Additons 28,476 125,980 72,028 16,335 69 242888
Transfer (59,114} (12,595) - - - {71,709)
Disposals - - {40,326} - {40,326
Balance, December 31, 2010 528,639 1,361,446 450,841 163,546 10,496 2,514,968
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Balance, January 1, 2008 171,701 108,657 127,573 50,286 2574 460,71
Provision 23,24 79,178 76,066 71,283 24,165 1,817 252,509
Disposals - - (19,378} (161) - {19,539
Transfer - (6,832) - - - (6,832
Balance, December 31, 2008 250,879 177,891 179,478 74,290 4,30 686,929
Provision 23,24 79,615 78,848 77,966 23,497 1.919 261,845
Ba.la.nce,. December 31, 2009 330,494 256,739 257,444 97,787 6,310 948774
Provision 23,24 76,915 88,11 101,860 20,321 1,043 288,870
Transfer - (10,357} - - - (10,357)
Disposals - - (40,326} - - {40,326)
Balance, December 31, 2010 407,409 334,513 318,978 118,108 7,953 1,186,961
Canrying Amounts
December 31, 2010 $121,230  $1,026,933 $131,863 545,438 $2,543  $1,328007
Carnrying Arnounts
December 31, 2009 $228,783 § 991,322 $161,695 £49.424 $4.117  $143534)
Carrying Arnounts
December 31, 2008 $276,901 § 986,474 $174,855 $58,946 $5,335 §1,502,311

Gains (loss) on disposals of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in Notes 25 and 26.

Transportation equipment under mortgage as discussed in Note 17 amounted to $91,827,
$56,582 and $14,567in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Management believes that there is no indication of impairment on its property, plant and

equipment.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Note 2010 2009 2008
Deposit - lease 18 $2,316,549 $2,356,140 $2,356,140
Input value-added tax (VAT) 45,493 45,700 53,535
Deferred cost 11,774 3,196 22,039
Deposit - - 57,000
$2,373,816 $2,405,036 $2,488,714

Deferred cost represents unused supplies such as plastic trays and cartons to be used within
four (4) to six (6) months from the time of purchase.
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Note 2010 2009 2008
Trade $1,041,153 % 492,075 $1,636,127
Accrued expenses 646,090 566,351 626,180
Cash dividends 21 - 258,430 252,286
Customer’s deposit 31,296 189 867 41,721

$1,718,539 $1,506,723 $2,556,314

The average credit period on purchases of certain goods from suppliers is 30 days. No
interest is charged on the payables even if they exceed credit terms.

Details of accrued expenses are as follows:

Note 2010 2009 2008
Management fees 24 $241,519 $269,935 $167,356
Interest 73,527 - 12,550
Due to government agencies 56,086 29,417 46,807
Salaries and wages 44,907 71,199 66,731
Freight 37,064 36,658 36,889

Rent 15,798 - -
Other short-term employee benefits 12,253 53,113 90,532
Professional fees 16,131 15,756 18,899
Others 148,805 90,273 186,416
$646,090 $5606,351 $626,180

Other accruals consist of accrual of udliues, security services and plant rental.

LOANS PAYABLE

Bank loans

The Company availed of bank facilities in the form of export packing credit, export bills
purchase against letters of credit/documents against payment sight and open account to
finance its working capital requirements at an interest rate of 4% to 7% per annum. The
Company also has an outstanding clean short-term loan with an investment bank. Proceeds
received from bank loans in 2010, 2009 and 2008 amounted to $37,669,790, $32,330,008 and
$34,058,109, respectvely. Payments of bank loans in 2010, 2009 and 2008 amounted to
$39,4006, $32,363,429 and $32,335,827, respectively.

Mostgage loans

These represent loans availed by the Company from certain local banks to finance the
acquisition of the Company’s transportation equipment as disclosed in Note 14. Interest rate
is 10.65% per annum, payable on a monthly basis and maturing in july 2013.

Payments of mortgage loan in 2010, 2009 and 2008 amounted to $30,427,994, $2,013,
$7,601, respecuvely.

Finance costs arising from the above loans amounted to $377,999 in 2010, $217,463 in 2009,
and $154,936 in 2008, as disclosed in Note 28.

The unsecured outstanding bank and mortgage loans as of December 31, 2010, 2009, and
2008 amounted to $10,786,107, $3,583,717, and $3,619,151, respectively.
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18.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Arm’s length transactions berween the Company and its related parties are disclosed in this
note.

Relationship 2010 2009 2008
Due from Related Partes
AMIHI Subsidiary $2,117,348 $ - $
BGB Subsidiary 804,037 72,278 -
PT LAF] Subsidiary 672,425 4,277,793 2,234,674
PFNZ Subsidiary 247,112 163,310 -
FDCP Inc. Associate 155,239 225,268 115,569
First Dominion Prime Holdings, Inc. (FDPHI) Affiliate 16,096 19,234 17,858
Alliance Pilipinas Holdings, Inc. Affiliate 12,740 6,670 -

$4,024,997  $4,764.553 $2.368,101

Due to a Related Party
Maranaw Canning Corporation (MCC) Affiliate $ 487,016 $1,783,434 $1,716,175

The Company and the affiliates above are considered to be related parties since those
companies have the same stockholders and owners.

The Company expects to collect or settle due from/to related parties within one (1) year.

Significant Contract Agreements

a.

The Company extended cash advances to AMIHI which the latter used as a down
payment to purchase the Gensan plant from MCC amounting to $2,117,348.

The advances extended to BGB were used for its pre-operating expenses and to finance
the construction of the processing plant amounting to $804,037 and $72,278 in 2010 and
2009, respectively.

The Company executed a guarantee agreement in favor of Land Bank of the Philippines
as part of the security for the credit facilities obtained by its subsidiary BGB.

The Company extended a non-interest bearing advances to its subsidiary PTIAFI to
finance the renovation of the plant, acquisiion of machinery and equipment and for its

iniual working capital.

Further, the Company issued a corporate guarantee and a subordination agreement with
Rabo Bank Jakarta for the working capital facility granted to its subsidiary PTTAFL

The Company likewise extended advances to PFNZ for its working capital requirements
in the amounts of $247,327 and $163,310 in 2010 and 2009, respecuvely.

The Company, in the ordinary course of business, purchased tn cans used as raw
materials from FDCP Inc., at arm’s length basis, amounting to $4,417,140 in 2010,
$4,391,152 in 2009 and $5,721,504 in 2008.

On October 18, 2004, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with
FDPHI to purchase the debt of FDPHI from certain creditors with miniscule amounts
at net present value of $17,491. In return, the Company will receive a total of $26,324
from FDPHI over a period of 10 years, and in addidon to this, a corresponding number
of the Company shares which would have accrued to the creditors were likewise 1ssued
to the Company. The corresponding 287,537 ordinary shares were issued on November
8, 2006 as treasury shares. These are part of the shares declared by the SEC as exempted
from registration under Sec. 10.2 of the SRC on September 21, 2006.

From 2004 up to present, the Company has obtained advances from MCC with an
annual interest rate of 10% on the first P50 million and 8% on the excess.

Finance costs related 1o advances from related parties amounted to $158,347 in 2010,
$150,107 in 2009, and $117,055 in 2008 as disclosed in Note 28.
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h. The Company entered into a contract with MCC for the operating lease of the larter’s
land, plant, machinery and equipment in Barrio Tambler, General Santos City (Gensan
Plant) at 2 monthly rental of $21,443, $20,306 and $21,750 in 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.  The Jease term started from March 1, 2004 and expired on
December 23, 2010. Upon expiration of the lease contract between the Company and
MCC, the latter leased the plant for one-month or until January 23, 2011 to AMIHI
which in turn sub-leased the Gensan plant to the Company. AMIHI is the subsidiary of
the Company that would buy the Gensan plant from MCC. The lease contract between
MCC and AMIHI was extended to a much longer term effective January 24, 2011 to
December 23, 2013 thus, enabling AMIHI to sublease the plant to the Company for the
same period. As of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company has an outstanding
lease deposit with MCC amounted to $2,316,549, $2,356,140 and $2,356,140,
respectively. The deposit is included in other non-current assets in the statements of
financial position as disclosed in Note 15.

The Company also leases from MCC an office condominium unit where its head office
is located for a period of two (2) years, renewable by mutual agreement of both parties,
The lease is classified as operating lease with a monthly rental of $3,262, $3,089 and
$3,309 in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Total rental expense recognized in profit or loss during 2010, 2009 and 2008 amounted
to $296,460, $280,740, and $300,708, respectively.

The total future minimum lease payments arising from the above lease agreements for
each of the following periods follow

2010 2009 2008
Not later than one year $ 710,949 $240,619 $300,708
Later than one vear but not later than five vears 1,406,099 - 240,619

$2,117,048 $240,619 $541,327

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The remuneration of the key management personnel of the Company is set out below in
aggregate as specified in PAS 24.

Notes 2010 2009 2008
Short-term employee benefits 23,24, 27 $533,467 $479,533 $504,987
Post-employee benefits 19 24, 27 32,227 37,828 23,378

$565,694 $517,361 $528,365

RETIREMENT BENEFIT EXPENSE

The Company accrues retirement benefit expense for its qualified employees based on the
minimum retirement benefit provlded under Republic Act No. 7641 equivalent to one-half
month salary per vear of service, a fraction of at least six (6} months being considered as one
whole year. One-half month salary is defined as 15 days plus 1/12 of the 13% month pay and
the cash equivalent of not more than five (5) days of service incentive leaves. The benefit
shall be payzble to employees who retire from service who are at least 60 years old and with
at least five (5) vears of continuous service.

The Company has executed a Trust Agreement with Land Bank of the Philippines dated
January 13, 2011, establishing the Company’s Retirement Plan.

Total retirement expense recognized as part of selling and administratve expenses
amounted to 360,068, $44,849 and $37,569 in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respecuvely, as
disclosed in Notes 24 and 27.
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The inital actuarial valuatons of the defined benefit obligation were carried out on
June 3, 2010 by an independent actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligaton,
and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected
Unit Credit Method.

Based on Management estimates, actuarial assumptions made on june 3, 2010 does not

change significantly over the year.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Valuation at

2010 2009 2008
Discount rate 8.00% 8.00% 8.50%
Expected rate of salary increases 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Amounts recognized in profit or loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

Note 2010 2009 2008
Cutrent service cost $38,424 $32,980 $29,579
Interest cost 19,152 11,869 7,990
Actuarial loss recognized 1,531 - -
Amortization of past service cost 961 - -
' 24 $60,068 $44,849 $37,569

The amounts included in the statements of financial position arising from the Company’s
obligations in respect of its retirernent benefit obligation are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Present value of defined benefir obligation $292,358 $232,966 $144.322
Unrecognized actuanal gains or losses (48,438) (37,990) {9,991}
Translation adjustments (1,592) (10,636) 633
Unamortized portion of the transitional liability (8,650) - -

$233,678 $184,340 $134,964

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations in the current period are as
follows:

2010 2009 2008
Balance, January 1 $232,966 $144,322 $114,440
Current service cost 38,424 32,980 29,519
Interest cost 19,152 11,869 7,990
Past service cost - non-vested benefits 9,613 - -
Actuarial loss - 37,990 9,991
Benefits paid (22,787) - -
Exchange difference 14,992 5,805 (17,678)

Balance, December 31 $292,358 $232,966 $144,322
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The history of experience adjustment is as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Present value of defined benefit obligation $292,358 $232.966 $144,322
Experence adjustment on plan liabilities (48,438) (32,967) (24,153)
20. SHARE CAPITAL
Shares 2010 Shares 2009 Shares 2008

Authorized:
Ordinary shares of
P1 par value cach 950,000,000  P950,000,000 950.000,000 P950,000,000  950.600,000 P950.000,000

Outstanding

shares:

Issued and fully

paid 599,277,059  $11,540,140 599,277,059 $11,540,140 599,277,059  $11,540,140
Treasury shares (287,537) (5,774) (287,537} (5,774) (287,537 (5,774)

598,989,522  $11,534,366 598,989,522  §11,334.366 598989522  $11,534,366

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.

There was no movement in the share capital of the Company for the 2010, 2009 and 2008
reporting periods.

21 DIVIDENDS DECLARED

On December 4, 2009, the Company declared cash dividends of Php.02 per share with a
value of $258,430 out of the unrestricted retained earnings. The cash dividends were paid on
February 3, 2010.

On December 3, 2008, the Company declared cash dividends of Php.02 per share with a
value of §252,286 out of the unrestricted retained earnings. The cash dividends were paid on
February 2, 2009.

22, REVENUES

An analysis of the Company’s revenues is as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Sales of canned goods $35,331,519 $41,844,762  $48,745,209
Sales of fishmeal 2,841,925 2,367,320 2,801,893

$38,173,444 344212082 $51.637,102
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L 23, COST OF GOODS MANUFACTURED AND SOLD
b
it Notes 2010 2009 2008
fk‘;’.ﬁ Materials used $25,597,365 $25,576,473 $42,487,550
b Direct labor 27 2,710,046 2,699,617 3,105,297
£ Manufacturing overhead
& Fuel 1,118,223 850,532 1,337,790
" Fishmeal 1,088,815 966,042 1,417,526
f;;; Warehousing 445,266 507234 547,682
~J Freight and handling 308,729 393,665 365,409
) Indirect labor 27 281,676 317,593 347,698
Rental 18 259,568 229,826 250,151
Light and water © 193,136 176,089 200,215
Laboratory 180,582 145,631 167,361
Repairs and maintenance 176,567 235,616 175,948
Depreciation and amortization 14 168,446 161,591 160,981
QOutside services 129,285 114,189 84,734
Consumables 96,535 108,543 123,513
Security fees 89,992 88,423 87,764
Representation and entertainment 56,376 58,468 77,390
Travel and communication 32,459 32,462 40,939
Amortization 25,627 177,577 195,384
Professional fees 6,622 6,476 5,386
Others 30 431,055 294,241 254,868
Total manufacturing costs 33,396,370 33,140,288 51,433,586
Finished goods, beginning 10 2,267,414 8,536,773 2,731,156
Total cost of goods manufactured 35,603,784 41,677,001 54,164,742
Finished goods, ending 10 (1,989,889)  (2,267,414)  (8,536,773)
Cost of goods manufactured and sold $ 33,673,895 539,409,647 $45,627,969

Others include insurance, cooperative labor services, office supplies, taxes and licenses and
corporate social responsibility expenses. ’
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b
i Notes 2010 2009 2008
;Qs.“ Salanes, wages and other benefits 18, 27 $ 721,516 § 642792 § 670,784
) Management fees 16 241,519 269,935 370,786
& Rental 18 122,740 112,648 119,616
&l Depreciation and amortization 14 120,424 100,254 91,528
o Transportation and travel 102,373 210,022 136,589
g: Representation and entertainment 94,896 174,036 202,678
y Utlities and communication 76,331 77,891 84,815
i Business development 61,739 121,676 74,955
Retirement benefit 19, 27 60,068 44 849 37,569
Qutside services 50,568 03,162 80,928
Freight and handling 30,564 26,611 35,139
Materials and supplies 29,066 27,472 21,810
Fringe benefit tax 25,638 27,416 26,579
Fuel and oil 21,315 19,468 22,042
Membership dues 18,065 13,213 11,844
Repairs and maintenance 15,169 16,887 13,909
Other personnel expenses 12,572 8,956 14,832
Taxes and licenses 10,459 22,584 9,429
Insurance 8,754 9,333 10,243
Condominium dues 8,423 7,809 7,059
Others 30 363,038 220,738 269,093

$2,195,237  $2.247,752  $2,312,227

Management fees represent the amounts due to Bhumipat Dhnavarapitak and MCC which
are equivalent to P5 million or 10% of the Company’s annual earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization, whichever is higher.

Others include buyer’s claims, documentary stamps, adverusing, and documentation
CXPCHSCS.

25. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

An analysis of the Company’s other operating income 1s as follows:

Notes 2010 2009 2008
Foreign exchange gain $63,214 $361,368 $78,243
Interest income 8 5,465 6,181 11,151
Gain on sale of property, plant and
equipment 14 2,276 - -

$70,955 $367,549 $89,394
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26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Note 2010 2009 2008
Bank charges $117.,455 $209,253 $152,765
Loss on sale of property, plant and
equipment 14 - - 5,193

$117,455 $209,253 $157,958

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Aggregate employee benefits expense consists of:

Notes 2010 2009 2008
Short-term employee benefits 18, 23,24 $3,713,238  $3,660,002  $4,123,779
Post-emplovee benefits 18, 19, 24 60,068 44,849 37,569

$3,773,306  §$3,704,851  §4,161,348

FINANCE COSTS

The composition of finance costs follows:

Notes 2010 2009 2008

Interest on advances from an affiliate 18 $158,347 $150,107 $117,055
Interest on export packing credit
and bills purchase 17 374,549 216,290 152,832
Interest on mortgage loan 17 3,450 1,173 2,104
$536,346 $367,570 $271,99
EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

2010 2009 2008
Profit for the year $ 1,720,783 § 2345409 § 3,356,351
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Qutstanding 598,989,522 598,989,522 598,989,522
Eatnings per Share $ 0.003 § 0.004 % 0.006

As of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company has no dilutive potential shares,
hence, the basic earnings per share is equal to the diluted earnings per share.

EXTENSION OF INCOME TAX HOLIDAY (ITH)

On September 12, 2008, the BO! approved the application of the Company for an extension
of its ITH incentive. The extension is for the period August 24, 2008 to 2010 using the net
foreign exchange earnings and indigenous raw materials criterion pursuant to Article
39(2)(1)((11) and (iti) of Executive Order 226.

On September 28, 2008, the BOI approved another year of extension of its ITH incentive.
The extension is for the period August 24, 2010 to 2011 using the capital equipment to labor
ratio criterion pursuant to Artcle 39(a)(1)(1) of Executve Order 226

k)|



For the vear 2008, the Company organized a feeding program in line with the Government’s
Poverty Reduction Program and Project and Nanonal Anti-Poverty Commission’s “Kalahi”
core strategy on improved access to human development services.

The Company continued to be of service to the deprived provincial communites through its
feeding program and participation in tuna donation programs spearheaded by various partner
organizations. In 2009, a public school located in Barangay Tambler, General Santos City
was adopted as the recipient of this successful program. The Company also participated in
various canned tuna donation programs throughout the year which were channeled through
various charitable organizations which benefited the victims of typhoon.

Calendar year 2010 marks the third year of the Company’s feeding program. A 161
elementary and 60 high school undernournshed students benefited in the program. At the
end of the school year, almost 90% of the children attained their normal body weights, thus,
contributing a positive effect in their school performance and total well-being. The
Company’s consistency of organizing yearly feeding programs pained remarkable
recognitions, encouraging public and private organizations to do the same and to be of
assistance to our fellow Filipinos.

Total expenses related to the corporate social responsibility amounted to $7,414 in 2010,
$17,384 in 2009 and $5,734 in 2008 which 1s included as part of other manufacturing
overhead as disclosed 1n Note 23.

31 INCOME TAXES
Income tax expense during the year consists of current tax amounting $683.

A numerical reconciliation berween tax expense and the product of accounting profit
muldphed by 30% in 2010, 2009 and 2008 follows:

2010 2009 2008
Accounting profit $ 1,721,466 § 2345409 % 3,356,351
Tax expense at 30% $ 516,440 § 703623 § 1,174,723
Tax effect of expenses that are non-deducuble:
Expenses exempt from tax 10,956,880 12,670,266 16,929,551
Tax effect of income that is subject to lower rate:
Income exempt from taxation (11,472,637)  (13,373,889) (18,104,274
$ 683 § - $ -

32, FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are shown below:

2010 2008 2008
Carrying Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents § 327,525 0§ 327525 5 446,108 § 446,008 § 581,193 $ 380,271
Trade and other receivables 8,157,754 8,157,754 4,684,745 4,684,745 5,611,194 5,611,194
Due from related parties 4,024,997 4,024,997 4,764,553 4,764,553 2,368,101 2,368,101

$12,510,276  $12,510,276  $£9.895,406  $9.895,406  $8.560,4B8 $8.359.566

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables $ 1,662,453 % 1,662,453 $1,477,306  $1,477,306  §2509,507 £2,509,507
Loans pavable 10,786,107 10,786,107 3,583,717 3,583,717 3,619,151 3,619,151
Due to a related party 487,016 487,016 1,783,434 1,783,434 1,716,175 1.716,175

$12,035,576  $12,935,576  $6,844,457 56,844,457  £7844.833 §7.844.833
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33.

Due to the short-term maturities of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
due from related parties, trade and other payables, their carrying amounts approximate their
fair values

The fair values of loans payable and due to a related party are determined based on the
discounted cash flow analysis using interest rates for similar types of instruments.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF
INTERNAL REVENUE (BIR) UNDER REVENUE REGULATIONS NO. 15-2010

The BIR issued Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 15-2010 dated November 25, 2010,
Amending Certain Provisions of RR No. 21-2002, as Amended, Implementing Section 6 (H)
of the Tax Code of 1997, Authorizing the Commissioner of Internal Revenue to Prescribe
Additonal Procedural and/or Documentary Requirements in Connection with the
Preparation and Submission of Financial Statements Accompanying the Tax Retumns. RR

15-2010 is effective on December 28, 2010.

The following information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the
taxable year is presented for purposes of filing with the BIR and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

Output VAT
Detatls of the Company’s output VAT declared are as follows:

Vartable Zero-rated  VAT-exempt
2010
Revenue $73,709 $35,331,519 $2,841,924
Qutput VAT rate 12% 0% -
$ 8,845 $ - 5 -

The Company’s export sales of canned tuna are VAT Zero-rated under Sec.4.106-5 of Rev.
Reg. No. 14-2005 while Sales of fishmeal which is a by-product are VAT-exempt pursuant
to Sec.4.109-1 (b) of Rev. Reg. No. 14-2005.

Input VAT
Details of the Company’s input VAT claimed are as follows:

2010
Balance, January 1 $45,698
Add: Current year’s domestic purchases/payments for:
Goods other than for resale or manufacture 3,181
Services lodged under cost of goods sold 2,934
Services lodged under other accounts 3,241
Total available input VAT 55,054
Less: Claims for:
Output tax 8,866
Othet adjustments 695
9,561
Balance, December 31 $45,493
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Taxes on importation of goods

Total landed cost of imports in 2010 and 2009 amounted to P234,566,815 and
P118,800,061, respectively. The Company has an existing License to Operate 2 Customs
Bonded Warehouse located at Bo. Tambler, General Santos City, pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 2011-2001 of the Tariff and Custom Code of the Philippines, as amended, and
implemented by CAO 2-91 and CMO 39-91. As an Operator of CBMW No. 57, the
Company is exempted from payment of custom duties and tarff fees in importatons of
goods.

Documentary stamp tax

Details of the Company’s documentary stamp tax paid or accrued are as follows:

2010
Loan agreements, instruments and papers $ 6,002
Debt instruments 80,391
$86,393

Other taxes and lcenses

Details of the Company’s other taxes and licenses and permit fees paid or accrued are as
follows:

2010
Charged to Cost of Sales
Real property tax $ 55,520
Permit fees 48,539
Others 5,172
109,231
Charged to Operating Expenses
Community Tax Certificate 233
Permit fees ’ 916
Others 9,310
10,459
$119,690

Withholding taxes

Details of the Company’s withholding taxes paid or accrued during the year are 2s follows:

2010
Withholding tax on compensation and benefits $165,593
Expanded withholding taxes 290,061
Final withholding taxes 27,890
$483,544

Final withholding taxes arise from payment of cash dividends and interest on FCDU loans.

Deficiency tax assessments and lax cases

BIR assessed the Company for tax deficiency on expanded withholding taxes for the year
2008. This was paid on October 10, 2010.
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34.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Company were approved and authorized for issuance by the

Board of Directors on April 8, 2011,

35



